SHENANDOAH
T E X A S

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING
January 22, 2020
SHENANDOAH CITY COUNCIL

STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
CITY OF SHENANDOAH

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Meeting of the Shenandoah City Council will be held on Wednesday,
January 22, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. at the City of Shenandoah Municipal Complex, 29955 IH-45 North,
Shenandoah, Texas for the purpose of considering the following:

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. CALLOFROLL

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. INVOCATION

CITIZEN’S FORUM

5. CITIZENS FORUM
Citizens are invited to speak for three (3) minutes on matters relating to city government that
relate to agenda or non-agenda items. Speakers are asked to stand up and approach the podium
to address Council and give their name and address before sharing their comments.
Responses to inquiries are limited by state law to a recitation of existing policy or a statement
of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or decision by
Council shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on the agenda of a future meeting.

6. Council’s Inquiry

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042, the Mayor and Council Members may
inquire about a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to a
recitation of existing policy or a statement of specific factual information given in response to
the inquiry. Any deliberation or decision shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on
the agenda of a future meeting.

INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION:

7.
8.
9.

Update regarding mobility projects from Bleyl Engineering.
Discussion and possible action regarding the 2019 annual financial report.

Presentation of a final report regarding the proposed zoning amendment for a special use permit
for a Medical Services: General. The proposed zoning amendment is for 1500 Research Forest
Drive, Suite 120, Shenandoah, Texas (IV Bars of The Woodlands).

10. Public hearing regarding the proposed zoning amendment for a special use permit for a Medical

Services: General. The proposed zoning amendment is for 1500 Research Forest Drive, Suite 120,
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11.

12.
13.
14,

15.

16.
17.

18.

19.
20.

21.
22.

23.

Shenandoah, Texas.
Discussion and possible action to adopt the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES,
CHAPTER 102, GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR MEDICAL SERVICES: GENERAL FOR 1500
RESEARCH FOREST DRIVE, SUITE 120, SHENANDOAH, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY IN THE
AMOUNT OF $2,000 FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Presentation of MDD report.
Presentation of a proclamation announcing Arbor Day 2020.
Discussion and possible action to adopt the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR THE HOLDING OF A
GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 2, 2020, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING THREE (3) CITY
COUNCIL MEMBERS, MAYOR, AND POSITIONS 1 AND 5; AND PROVIDING DETAILS RELATING TO
THE HOLDING OF SUCH ELECTIONS.

Discussion and possible action regarding the Election Services Agreement and Joint Election
Agreement with Montgomery County for the May 2, 2020 City General Election.

Discussion and possible action to approve a change order for the Pinecroft waterline project.

Discussion and possible action to approve a proposal for final design of the Home Depot driveway
and Research Forest right turn lane projects.

Discussion and possible action to approve the purchase of trucks from the Public Works/Water
Sewer equipment replacement fund.

Discussion and possible action to approve charges for the Stagg Bowl.
Discussion and possible action to adopt the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING
PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER ENTERGY SERVICE AREA CITIES IN MATTERS CONCERNING ENTERGY
TEXAS, INC. AT THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF TEXAS IN 2020; AUTHORIZING THE HIRING
OF LAWYERS AND RATE EXPERTS; AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION TO THE FULL EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW AT THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF TEXAS; FINDING THAT THE MEETING
COMPLIES WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT; AND DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Discussion and possible action to ratify the accounts payable for December, 2019.
Non-Action Items
The following budgeted items were authorized by the City Administrator, per Council approval:

e 2019-2020 Catahoula Well Expenses - $64,400.00

CITIZENS FORUM

Citizens are invited to speak for three (3) minutes on matters relating to city government that
relate to agenda or non-agenda items. Speakers are asked to stand up and approach the podium
to address Council and give their name and address before sharing their comments.

City Council Meeting

January 22, 2020
Page 2 of 4



Responses to inquiries are limited by state law to a recitation of existing policy or a statement
of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or decision by
Council shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on the agenda of a future meeting.

24. City Administrator updates — Monthly Reports

e Administration

e Finance

e Police/Fire

e Public Works/Capital Projects

e Community Development/Municipal Court
e Convention and Visitors Bureau

25. Council’s Inquiry

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042, the Mayor and Council Members may
inquire about a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to a
recitation of existing policy or a statement of specific factual information given in response to
the inquiry. Any deliberation or decision shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on
the agenda of a future meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Public notice is given that the City Council may elect to go into Executive Session at any time during
the meeting in order to discuss any matters listed on the Agenda when authorized by the provisions
of the Open Meeting Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, to receive advice from legal
counsel, to discuss matters of land acquisition, personnel matters or other lawful matters that are
specifically related to items listed on this Agenda. Prior to any such closed session, the Mayor, in
open session, will identify the agenda item to be discussed and the Section or Sections of Chapter
551 under which the closed discussion is authorized.

Executive Session — According to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas
Government Code as follows:
i) Government Code § 551.074. Personnel Matters;
e City Administrator
ii) Government Code § 551.071. Consultation with Attorney; Pending Litigation
e Denton Dam Agreement

iii)  Government Code § 551.087. Deliberation Regarding Economic Development
Negotiation

e PILOT Agreement with Memorial Hermann

a) Consideration and if determined appropriate, take action resulting from the item(s) listed
under Executive Session.

ADJOURN

The Council may vote and/or act upon each of the items listed on this Agenda. One agenda item will be
discussed at a time unless logic and practical consideration allow similar topics to be considered
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justified under the Open Meetings Act

together for purposes of convenience and efficiency. The Council may retire into executive session
concerning any of the items listed on this Agenda, whenever it is considered necessary and legally

Any discussion item on the City Council agenda permits City Council to question the involved parties or
receive a presentation by the involved parties

City Hall is wheelchair accessible. A sloped entry is available at the entrance with specially marked parking spaces

available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please
contact the City Secretary’s office at 281-298-5522 or Fax 281-367-2225 for information

| certify that the attached notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board at City of Shenandoah Municipal
Complex, 29955 IH-45 North, Shenandoah, Texas, on the_ 17 day January 2020 at: 11:50 o’clock a.m
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City of Shenandoah
Mobility Projects Update

January 22, 2020
BLEYL ENGINEERING
PLANNING ¢ DESIGN * MANAGEMENT

By: John D. Bleyl, PE




Intersection Improvements 1-45 at
Research Forest Dr./Tamina Rd.
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Home Depot
Driveway
Modifications




Research Forest Dr. Right Turn Lane
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David Memorial Dr. Extension
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Questions?

John D. Bleyl, PE
036-441-7833
ibleyl@bleylengineering.com

BLEYL ENGINEERING

PLANNING ¢ DESIGN * MANAGEMENT
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o Shenandoah City Council
SHENANDOAH AGENDA REPORT

T E X A S

AGENDA DATE: January 22, 2020 ITEM NUMBER: 8
DEPARTMENT: Finance PREPARED BY:  Lisa Wasner

2019 Annual Financial Report; Audit
PRICING: EXHIBITS: Report Presentation

SUBJECT/PROCEEDING:

2019 Annual Financial Report

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends that Council accept the Annual Financial Report.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

BrooksWatson, PLLC, conducted an audit of the City’s financial activities for fiscal year 2018-2019. The city received an
unmodified opinion, the highest level of assurance. There are no material deficiencies or weaknesses as reported by
the auditing firm.

Highlights:

e Combined City fund balance of $23,776,883, increase of $250,942 from 2017-2018
e $7,549,368 unassigned fund balance for General Fund (99% of total GF expenditures);
e Increase in net position of $5,370,504 resulting from revenues exceeding expenses.

Section 103 of the Local Government Code requires an annual audit of records and accounts and an annual financial
statement to be prepared based on the audit. The audit is required to be complete within 180 days from the last day of
the fiscal year. The audit findings, and timeliness of submission, are a pivotal component of the City’s bond rating. The
audit findings must be submitted to the Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) within the 180 days.

This is the seventh year BrooksWatson, formerly BrooksCardiel, has served as the City’s auditor.

APPROVALS:
DEPARTMENT HEAD Oﬁ“@w DATE: January 9, 2020
CITY ADMINISTRATOR \b\t — DATE: January 16, 2020

-
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Shenandoah, Texas
Audit Presentation
September 30, 2019

Presented By: Louis Breedlove, Senior Audit Manager
January 22, 2020




OVERVIEW OF THE AUDIT PROCESS

Audit Planning and Risk Assessment

» Audit Standards — The audit was performed in accordance with
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS)

» Assessment — Evaluate and examine processes and controls

» Risk-Based Approach — The audit process was a risk-based approach
in which we identified potential areas of risk that could lead to
material misstatement of the financial statements. Risks such as:

* Revenues and related expenditures

e Construction in progress, purchasing requirements, bids and
capital assets

e Payroll Expenditures and payroll related liabilities

e Long term liabilities (bonds payable, pension)

BWC 2




OVERVIEW OF THE AUDIT PROCESS

Audit Fieldwork & Completion and Reporting

» Compliance Testing — Performed testing over the City’s compliance
with provisions with laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, including items such as compliance with Public Funds
Investment Act (PFIA) compliance requirements.

» Fieldwork — Agree balances to underlying reports, and perform
testing to assure those balances are materially accurate.

» Conclusion & Reporting — Evaluate results. Prepare report and
required communications.

BWC 3




COMPONENTS OF THE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

“*Auditor’s Opinion
“* Management’s Discussion and Analysis
“* Basic Financial Statements

=  Government-Wide Statements

= Fund Level Statements

= Notes to the Financial Statements
“* Required Supplementary Information

= Budget to Actual — General Fund

BWC 4




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

“* Four possible outcomes

-Unmodified
-Qualified
-Disclaimed

-Adverse

“* The City received an unmodified opinion
«* Highest level of assurance

BWC 5




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

“*Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $49,943,676.

“ City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $23,776,883, an increase of $250,942.

“*Unassigned fund balance in the general fund was
$7,549,368 or 99% of annual general fund expenditures.

“*The City had an overall increase in net position of
$5,370,504 for the year.

BWC 6




City Revenues — Governmental Activities

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS — YEAR ENDING 9/30/19 - REFERENCE AFR PAGE 11

Key Highlights:
* Increase in charges for services is primarily due to permit
2018 2019 Variance .
fees doubling due to local growth and development.
Charges for services 552,609 1,057,253 91.3% . _ o _ o .
Capital contributions 1,077,669 3,279 815 204.3% * Increase in capital contributions is due to a rise in capital
Property tax 1,995,541 3,118283  56.3% activity from Shenandoah MDD.
Sales tax 6,732,269 6,286,609 -6.6% * Decrease in sales tax is due to a one time sales tax
Franchise and local taxes 466,347 484,435 3.9% recovery in the previous year for a lump sum of $417,000.
Hotel 1,514,681 1,481,7 -2.29
ote occup.ancy taxes 14,68 A81,768 o » Increase in investments is a result of additional PID
Investment income 85,832 223,182 160.0% ' o _
Other revenues 289,917 182,578  -37.0% funds being held in interest bearing accounts.
" 12,714865 16,113,923 26.7% | = Other revenues decreased primarily due to the

nonrecurring proceeds received from the sale of capital

assets in the previous year.

B Salestax

B Franchise andlocal
taxes
3%

B Hotel occupancy
taxes
9%

B Property tax

’“‘ 19%

Otherrevenues
3%
B Chargesfor services
7%

B Capital contributions
20%




City Expenditures — Governmental Activities

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS — YEAR ENDING 9/30/19 - REFERENCE AFR PAGE 11

2018 2019 Variance Key Highlights:
General government 3,101,786 2,914,005 -6.1% *  Decrease in general government is primarily the result of the
Public safety 2,714,173 2,920,956 7.6% reclassification of certain expenses previously accounted for as
Public works 2,228,437 2,596,579 16.5% general government.
Community development 112,738 243,682 116.1% * Increase in public safety expenses are primarily due to

Technology ) 355,636 100.0% additional personnel costs.
Tourism 487,422 865,484 77.6% . . e 1
Garbage collection 26 895 281171 6.1 * Increase in public works is primarily a result of filling new
ar , , .17
& i positions within the department.
Interest and fiscal charges 2,349,329 1,544,983 -34.2% _ .
r 11,258,780 r 11,722,496 41% *  Community development expenses increased due to the use of
funds for new tree and vegetation improvements.
® Publicsafety § Publicworke * Technology expenses increased as a result of the City creating

25%

22% technology as a new sand alone department.

*  Tourism expenses increased primarily due to the City hosting
B Commnumity

development
2%

the 2018 Stagg Bowl in December 2018, in addition to increased
activity with the City’s advertising campaigns.

General *  Decrease in interest and fiscal charges is a result of the current

government
25% Interest and fiscal

B Technology

® Tourism 3% year bond refunding offset by the prior year issuance of special

Garbage collecion 7%

charges 3% assessments revenue bonds for the PID.
13%

Ij




STATEMENT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES &
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS — YEAR ENDING 9/30/19 - REFERENCE AFR PAGE 28

Other Total
General Debt Metro * Capital Hotel Nonmajor Governmental
Fund Service Park PID Improvements Occupancy Governmental Funds
Revenues
Total Revenues 9,341,104 1,081,910 1,340,018 1,047,672 1,511,980 15,129 14,337,813
Expenditures
Total Expenditures 7,652,152 2,457,764 2,438,181 2,102,071 858,516 226,457 15,735,141
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (1,553,523) 1,306,737 - 1,922,610 (156,473) 128,919 1,648,270
Net Change in Fund Balances 135,429 (69,117) (1,098,163) 868,211 496,991 (82,409) 250,942
Beginning fund balances 7,413,939 104,442 11,280,935 763,454 3,232,447 730,724 23,525,941
Ending Fund Balances $ 7,549,368 $ 35325 § 10,182,772 $ 1,631,665 % 3,729,438  $ 648315 $ 23,776,883

* Note: Metro Park PID (Public Improvement District) is a separate taxing entity from the City. The purpose of the
PID is to finance the costs of authorized improvements that confer a special benefit on the assessed property within
the PID, all of which is located within the corporate limits of the City. The PID is governed by the City Council, and
accordingly, has been reported as a blended component unit.

d




SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES &
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (Budget & Actual)

GENERAL FUND - YEAR ENDING 9/30/19 - REFERENCE AFR PAGE 73

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Total Revenues 8,698,725 8,698,725 9,341,104 642,379
Expenditures
Total Expenditures 8,002,972 8,065,382 7,652,152 413,230
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 695,753 633,343 1,688,952 1,055,609
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,628,891) (1,628,891) (1,553,523) 75,368
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (933,138) % (995,548) 135,429 $ 1,130,977
Beginning fund balance 7,413,939
Ending Fund Balance $ 7,549,368

BWC
10



STATEMENT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES &
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS — YEAR ENDING 9/30/19 - REFERENCE AFR PAGE 33

Water &
Sewer
Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues 2,595,661
Operating Expenses
Total Operating Expenses 1,805,751
] Net Position
Operating Income (Loss) 789,910 — Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 18,137,871
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses Unrestricted 197,494
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 21,089 Total Net Position $ 18,335,365
Income Before Transfers and Contributions 810,999
Developer fees 168,078 % Unrestricted net position = 11% of total operating expenses
Transfers in 870,462
Transfers (out) (1,474,982)
Change in Net Position 374,557
Beginning net position 17,960,808

Ending NetPosition  $ 18,335,365

/W
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Other Reports

Communication with
Those Charged with
Governance

Communication
Regarding
Internal Controls
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Thank You!

We appreciate the
opportunity to serve the
City of Shenandoah

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS




Questions?

Contact Info:

Louis Breedlove, Senior Audit Manager
Phone 281.907.9188 | Fax 888.875.0587
14950 Heathrow Forest Pkwy | Ste 530
Houston, TX 77032

LBreedlove@BrooksWatsonCPA.com

~

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We know your questions don’t end when the audit does.

We remain available throughout the year.



ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

For the Year Ended
September 30, 2019
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BROOKSWATSON & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Shenandoah, Texas:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, the discretely presented component unit, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Shenandoah, Texas (the “City”), as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

14950 Heathrow Farest Pkwy | Suite 530 | Houston, TX 77032 | Tel: 281.907.8788 | Fax: 888.875.0587 | www.BrooksWatsonCo.com




management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, the discretely presented component unit, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note V.E. the City has restated beginning fund balance within the general fund
and nonmajor governmental funds due to a change in fund reporting within the nonmajor
governmental funds. OQur opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in net pension liability and related
ratios, schedule of employer contributions to pension plan, schedule of changes in
postemployment benefits other than pensions and related ratios, and budgetary comparison
information as listed in the table on contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.




Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information, such as the combining statements, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. :

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements, Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining statements are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Bt Mbere Ca.

BrooksWatson & Co., PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

December 27, 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
September 30, 2019

As management of the City of Shenandoah, Texas (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2019,

Financial Highlights

¢ The City's total combined net position was $49,943,676 at September 30, 2019, Of this, $6,815,517
{unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and
creditors.

» At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund
balances of $23,776,883, an increase of $250,942.

¢ As of the end of the year, the-unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $7,549,368 or
99% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City had an overall increase in net position of $5,370,504, which is due to revenues
exceeding expenses that occurred in the current year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to financial statements. This
report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business,

The statement of net pesition presents financial information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g,, uncollected
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).




City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2019

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety,
community development, and public works. The business-type activities of the City include a water
and sewer operations,

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives, The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into thrée categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for govermmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Shenandoah, Texas maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general, debt service fund, the hotel
occupancy fund, the Metrosquare Park Public Improvement District (“PID”), and the Capital
Improvements fund considered to be major funds. Fund data for the remaining nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the combining and individual
fund statements and schedules section of this report.

The City of Shenandoah, Texas adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general, debt service,
special revenue, and utility funds. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided to
demonstrate compliance with the general fund budget and each major special revenue fund.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial staternents.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water distribution, wastewater collection/treatment




City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2019

and water construction operations, The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the water distribution, and wastewater collection/treatment fund. The basic proprietary
fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements of this report.

Component Unit

The City maintains the accounting and financial statements for one component unit. The Shenandoah
Municipal Development District (“SMDD”} is a discretely presented component unit d1splayed on the
government-wide financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements. The notes to the financial statements provide additional information
that is necessary to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes are the last section of the basic financial statements.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information (RSI) concerning the City’s progress in funding
its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pension,

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted previously, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial
position. For the City of Shenandoah, Texas, assets exceed liabilities by $49,943,676 as of September 30,
2019.

The largest portion of the City’s net position, $29,120,162, reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g.
land, city hall, police station, streets, and drainage systems, as well as the public works facilities), less
any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Current-and other assets of Business-Type Activities as of September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018
were $834,029 and $717,405, respectively. The increase of $116,624 was primarily a result of increased
recejvables at yearend, which is a direct result of the City’s customer base expanding.

Capital assets of Governmental Activities as of September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018 were
$43,567,350 and $40,690,629, respectively. The increase of $2,876,721 was a primarily attributable to the
continued investment in Metro Park PID and new purchases of public safety vehicles and equipment.




City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued

September 30, 2019

Long-term liabilities of Governmental Activities as of September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018 were
$35,574,908 and $36,402,921, respectively. The decrease of $828,013 was primarily attributable to a debt
refunding and principal payments made in the current year,

Long-term liabilities of Business-Type Activities as of September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018 were
$581,055 and $369,639, respectively. The increase of $211,416 is primarily due to the increase in the
City’s net pension liability over the course of the year.

Statement of Net Position:

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position: -

Current and
other assets
Capital assets, net
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows

Other liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows

Net Position:
Net investment
in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

2019 2018
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

$ 24397591 § 834,029 $ 25231620 $ 24,080,679 $ 717,405 $ 24,798,084
43,567,350 18,137,871 61,705,221 40,690,629 17,848,280 58,538,909
67,964,941 18,971,900 86,936,841 64,771,308 18,565,685 83,336,993
1,951,836 146,858 2,098,694 1,389,958 50,642 1,440,600
2,719,338 201,724 2,921,062 2,652,320 218,563 2,870,883
35,574,908 581,055 36,155,963 36,402,921 369,639 36,772,560
38,294,246 782,779 39,077,025 39,055,241 588,202 39,643,443
14,220 614 14,834 493,661 67,317 560,978
10,982,291 18,137,871 29,120,162 6,130,852 17,848,280 23,979,132
14,007,997 - 14,007,997 14,635,351 - 14,635,351
6,618,023 197,494 6,815,517 5,846,161 112,528 5,958,689

$ 31,608,311

$ 18,335,365

$ 49,943,676

$ 26,612,364

$ 17,960,808

$ 44573172

10




City of Shenandoah, Texas
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued

Statement of Activities:

September 30, 2019

The following table provides a summary of the City’s changes in net position:

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Capital contributions
General revenues:
Property tax
Sales tax
Franchise and local taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Investment income
Other revenues
Total Revenues

Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development
Technology
Tourism
Garbage collection
Interest and fiscal charges
Water & sewer

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Before Transfers

Transfers in (out)
Total

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Pogition

For the Year Ended September 30,2019

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Total _ Total

Governmental Business-Type Primary Governmental DBusiness-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
$ 1057253 s 2595661 § 3652914 § 552,609 % 2625172 % 3,177,781
3,279,815 168,078 3,447,893 1,077,669 - 1,077,669
3,118,283 - 3,118,283 1,995,541 - 1,995,541
6,286,609 - 6,286,609 6,732,269 - 6,732,269
484,435 - 484,435 466,347 - 466,347
1,481,768 . 1,481,768 1,514,681 - 1,514,681
223,182 2,884 226,066 85,832 1,180 87,012
182,578 18,205 200,783 289917 18,802 308,719
16,113,923 2,784,828 18,898,751 12,714,865 2,645,154 15,360,019
2,914,005 - 2,914,005 3,101,786 - 3,101,786
2,920,956 - 2,920,956 2,714,173 - 2,714,173
2,596,579 - 2,596,579 2,228437 - 2,228,437
243,682 - 243,682 112,738 - 112,738
355,636 - 355,636 - - -
865,484 - 865,484 487,422 - 487 422
281,171 - 281,171 264,895 - 264,895
1,544,983 - 1,544,983 2,349,329 - 2,349,329
- 1,805,751 1,805,761 - 1,639,726 1,639,726
11,722,496 1,805,751 13,628,247 11,258,780 1,639,726 12,898 506
4,39.1,427 979,077 5,370,504 1,456,085 1,005,428 2,461,513
604,520 (604,520) - (305,159) 305,159 -
604,520 (604,520) - (305,159) 305,159 -
4,995,947 374,557 5,370,504 1,150,926 1,310,587 2,461,513
26,612,364 17,960,808 44,573,172 25,461,438 16,650,221 42,111,659

$ 31,608,311

$ 18,335,365 § 49,943,676

$ 26,612,364

$ 17,960,808

$ 44,573,172

11




City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2019

Graphic presentations of selected data from the summary tables are displayed below to assist in the
analysis of the City’s activities.

Governmental Activities - Revenues
& Salestax
39%

B Franchise andlocal
taxes
3%

B Fotel occupancy
taxes

: 9%

* §1 Otherrevenues

3%

@ Property tax
19%

@ Charges for sexvices
7%

B Capital contributions
20%

For the year ended September 30, 2019, revenues from governmental activities totaled $16,113,923.
Overall revenues increased by $3,399,058. Sales tax, property tax, hotel occupancy taxes, and capital
contributions are the City’s largest revenue sources, Sales taxes decreased by $445,660 or 7% primarily
as a result of a sales tax audit in the previous year resulting in the recovery of $417,000 in previously
received sales tax revenues. Property taxes increased by $1,122,742 primarily due to the receipt of new
property taxes in the Metro Park PID. Capital contributions increased by $2,202,146 as a result of
greater contributions from SMDD in the current year. Investment income increased by $137,350 as a
result of PID funds being held in an interest-bearing account. Other revenues decreased by $107,339
primarily as a result of nonrecurring proceeds received from sale of capital assets in the prior year.

This graph shows the governmental function expenses of the City:

Governmental Activities - Expenses

M Public safety
25%

¥ Publicworks
22%

B Comnumity
development
2%

General # Technology

government 8 Tourism 3%
25% 1 Interest and Hscal = Garbage collection 79
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2019

For the year ended September 30, 2019, expenses for governmental activities totaled $11,722,496. This
represents an increase of $463,716 or 4% from the prior year. The City’s largest functional expense is
public safety of $2,920,956. Public safety expenses increased by $206,783 or 8%, which is primarily due
to increases in police department personnel expenses. General government expenses declined by
$187,781 or 6% due to the reclassification of certain expenses previously accounted for as part general
government into a newly formed technology department. Public works expenses increased by $368,142
or 17% primatily as a result of the City filling new positions within the department. In addition, the
City incurred more plan review and inspection related expenses, Community development expenses
increased by $130,944 primarily due to the City’s use of funds for new tree planting and vegetation
improvements, Technology expenses increased by $355,636 or 100% as a result of the City creating this
new department in the current year. Technology related expenses previously accounted for within
general government are now accounted for separately in its own department. Tourism expenses
increased $378,062 or 78% due to nonrecurring expenses incurred from the City hosting the 2018 Stagg
bowl in December 2018. In addition, a new director was hired who chose to be more active with the
City’s advertising campaigns. Interest and fiscal charges decreased by $804,346 primarily as a result the
bond refunding occurring in the current year.

Business-type activities are shown comparing operating costs to revenues generated by related
services.

Business-Type Activities - Revenues and Expenses

3,000,000

2,503,000

2,000,000 Fxpenses

1,500,000 Cluaiges for Services

1,000,000
500,000

For the year ended September 30, 2019, charges for services by business-type activities totaled
$2,595,661. This is a decrease of $29,511, or 1%, from the previous year, which is considered minimal.

. Total expenses increased by $i66,025 or 10%, which is primarily attributed to personnel and equipment
maintenance expenses.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to demonstrate and ensure compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

13




City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUISSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2019

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information of near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the year the general fund reflected a total fund balance of $7,549,368. The general fund
reflected an increase of $135,429. This is primarily a result of the geneéral fund receiving more revenue
than anticipated and expenditures falling below that which was budgeted.

The debt service fund reflected a fund balance of $35,325, a decrease of $69,117, which is primarily due
to debt service expenditures exceeding revenues and other financing sources.

The capital improvements fund reflected a fund balance of $1,631,665, an increase of $868,211, which is
primarily due to intergovernmental revenues and transfers in exceeding capital outlay expenditures.

The hotel occupancy fund reflected a fund balance of $3,729,438. The fund balance increased by
$496,991 from the prior year primarily due to lower than anticipated expenditures.

The Metro Park PID fund reflected a fund balance of $10,182,772. The fund balance decreased by
$1,098,163 primarily as a result of capital outlay and debt services expenditures exceeding property tax
revenues.

There was an overall increase in governmental fund balance of $250,942. This is primarily due to
$111,344 of net bond proceeds received as a result of the debt refunding and proceeds received from
sale of capital assets in the current year.

Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
There was a positive budget variance of $1,055,609 before other financing sources and uses, with a total
positive budget variance of $1,130,977 in the general fund after other sources and uses. Total actual

revenue exceeded budgeted revenue by $642,379. Total actual expenditures were $413,230 under
budget. ' ' ‘ :

Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control in the amount of $477,373 for general
government and 519,182 for public works, All other expenditures were less than budgeted.

14




City of Shenandoah, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2019

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of the end of the year, the City’s governmental activities funds had invested $43,567,350 in a variety
of capital assets and infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is included with the
governmental capital assets as required by GASB Statement No. 34. The City’s business-type activities
funds had invested $18,137,871 in a variety of capital assets and infrastructure, net of accumulated
depreciation.

Major capital asset events during the current year include the following:

¢ Investment in Metro Park PID of $1,203,883,

¢ Purchase of new police vehicles and equipment totaling $221,989.

» New investments in roadways, pathways, and detention pond in the municipal development
district totaling $2,718,929.

« Transfer of waterline and wastewater treatment plant improvements from governmental
activities to business type activities totaling $870,246.

More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in note IV. C to the financial
staternents.

LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of the current year, the City had total bonds outstanding of $32,030,000. During the year, the
City issued $2,940,000 of general obligation refunding bonds, As part of this new bond issuance,
$3,030,000 of general improvement bonds were refunded in the current year. The City made $2,075,000
in principal payments on ouistanding debt. More detailed information about the City’s long-term
liabilities is presented in note IV. F to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The Mayor and City Council are committed to maintaining and improving the overall wellbeing of the
City of Shenandoah, Texas and improving services provided to their public citizens. The City is
budgeting for growth in the upcoming year.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Shenandoah, Texas’s
finances for all those with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning this report or

requests for additional financial information should be directed to the City Administrator, 29955 1-45
North, Shenandoah, Texas 77381.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Page 1 of 2)

September 30, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,156,934 & 397,218 % 23,554,152
Receivables, net 1,240,657 436,811 1,677,468
Total Current Assets 24,397,591 834,029 25,231,620

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 11,001,113 2,413,040 13,414,153
Net depreciable capital assets 32,566,237 15,724,831 48,291,068
43,567,350 18,137,871 61,705,221
Total Assets 67,964,941 18,971,900 86,936,841
Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Pension contributions 392,910 56,543 449 453
OPEB contributions 464 67 531
Pension difference in experience 162,325 23,360 185,685
Pension changes in assumptions 16,778 2,415 19,193
Pension investment earnings 448,015 64,473 512,488
Deferred charge on refunding 931,344 - 931,344
Total Deferred Quiflows of Resources 1,951,836 146,858 2,098,694

18




Component Unit

Shenandoah
Municipal
Development
District

$ 5,031,631
315,933

5,347,564

5,347,564
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City of Shenandoah, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Page 2 of 2)

September 30, 2019
Primary Government
Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 390,849 68,689 459,538
Accrued liabilities 174,191 29,696 203,887
Accrued interest payable 64,350 - 64,350
Customer deposits 5,803 78,257 34,000
Compensated absences payable, current 159,145 25,082 184,227
Long-term debt due within one year 1,925,000 - 1,925,000
2,719,338 201,724 2,921,062
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt due in more than one year 31,538,926 - 31,538,926
Compensated absences payable, noncurrent 17,683 2,787 20,470
Net pension liability 3,916,064 563,556 4,479,620
OPEB liability 102,235 14,712 116,947
35,574,908 581,055 36,155,963
Total Liabilities 38,294,246 782,779 39,077,025
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred gain on refunding 9,955 - 9,955
CPEB assumption changes 724 104 828
OPEB difference in experience 3,541 510 4,051
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 14,220 614 14,834
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 10,982,291 18,137,871 29,120,162
Restricted for:
Debt service 35,325 - 35,325
Economic development - - -
Tourism 3,729,438 - 3,729,438
Municipal court 22,195 - 22,195
Tree maintenance 29,492 - 20,492
Park improvements 2,232 - 2,232
Public improvement 10,182,772 - 10,182,772
Public safety 6,543 - 6,543
Unrestricted 6,618,023 197,494 6,815,517
Total Net Position § 31,608,311 $ 18,335,365 $ 49,943,676

See Notes to Financial Statements.

20




Component Unit

Shenandoah
Municipal
Development
Disirict

5,342,197

5,342,197
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Program Revenues

Capital
Charges for Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government $ 2,914,005 & 1,030,278 % 1,566,313
Public safety 2,920,956 22,540 -
Public works 2,596,579 - 1,713,502
Community development 243,682 - -
Technology 355,636 - -
Tourism 865,484 - -
Garbage collection 281,171 4,435 -
Interest and fiscal charges 1,544,983 - -
Total Governmental Activities 11,722,496 1,057,253 3,279,815
Business-Type Activities
Water & Sewer 1,805,751 2,595,661 168,078
Total Business-Type Activities 1,805,751 2,595,661 168,078
Total Primary Government $ 13,528,247 % 3652914 % 3,447,893
Component Unit
Shenandoah Municipal
Development District $ 32344894 4 - $ 286,408
Total Component Unit Activities  § 3344894 $ - % 286,408

General Revenues:
Taxes
Property tax
Sales tax
Franchise and local taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Investment income
Other revenues
Transfers:
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position
Ending Net Position
See Notes to Financial Statements. '
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Component Unit

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position Shenandoah
Primary Government Municipal
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total District

5 (317,414) $ - % (317,414) § -
(2,898,416) - (2,898,416) -
(883,077) - (883,077) -
(243,682) - {243,682) -
(355,636) - {355,636) -
(865,484) - (865,484) -
(276,736) - {276,736) -
(1,544,983) - (1,544,983) -
{7,385,428) - (7,385,428) -

- 957,988 957,988 -

- 957,988 957,988 -

(7,385,428) 957,988 (6,427,440} -
(3,058,486)
(3,058,486)

3,118,283 - 3,118,283 -
6,286,609 - 6,286,609 2,008,758
484,435 - 484,435 -
1,481,768 - 1,481,768 -
225,182 2,884 226,066 34,132

182,578 18,205 200,783 161

604,520 {604,520) - -
12,381,375 {583,431) 11,797,944 2,043,051
4,995,947 374,557 5,370,504 {1,015,435)
26,612,364 17,960,808 44,573,172 6,357,632

$ 31,608,311 % 18,335,365  § 49,943,676 % 5,342,197
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2019
Capital
General Debt Service Metro Improvements
Fund Fund Park PID Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,858,046 § 35,325 % 10,182,772 % 1,802,023
Recelvables, net
Property taxes 23,190 26,675 - -
Sales taxes 948,407 - - -
Franchise taxes 40,555 - : - -
Mixed beverage taxes 79,585 - - -
Hotel occupancy taxes - - - -
Accounts receivable 9,231 - - -
Total Assets $ 7959014 § 62,000 $ 10,182,772 % 1,802,023
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 211,88 % - % - % 170,358
Accrued liabilities 168,770 - - -
Customer deposits 5,803 - - -
Total Liabilities 386,456 - - 170,358
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 23,190 26,675 - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 23,190 26,675 - -
Fund Balances
Restricted for:
Debt service - 35,325 - -
Tourism - - - -
Muncipal court - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Tree maintenance - - - -
Park improvements - - - -
Public improvement - - 10,182,772 -
Capital projects - - - 1,631,665
Committed for;
Equipment replacement - - - -
Land - - - -
Unassigned 7,549,368 - - .-
Total Fund Balances 7,549,368 35,325 10,182,772 1,631,665
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows _
of Resources, and Fund Balances § 7,959,014 § 62,000 - $: 10,182,772 - $- 1,802,023

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Hotel Nonmajor Total

Occupancy Governmental  Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

$ 3,629,553 % 649215 § 23,156,934

- - 49,865

- - 948,407

- - 40,5655

- - 79,585

113,014 - 113,014

- - 9,231

$ 3,742,567  $ 649,215 § 24,397,591

5 7708 % 900 % 390,849

5,421 - 174,191

- - 5,803

13,129 900 570,843

- - 49,865

- - 49,865

- - 35,325

3,729,438 - 3,729,438

- 22,195 22,195

- 6,543 6,543

- 29,492 29,492

- 2,232 2,232

- - 10,182,772

- - 1,631,665

- 584,359 584,359

- 3,494 3,494

- - 7,549,368

3,729,438 648,315 23,776,883

5 3,742,567 % 649215 § 24,397,591
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City of Shenandoah, Texas
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2019

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 23,776,883
Adjustments for the Statement of Net Position;
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, not reported in the governmental funds,
Capital assets - non-depreciable 11,001,113
Capital assets - net depreciable 32,566,237
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds.
Property tax receivable 49,865
Deferred outflows (inflows) of resources represent a consumption (acquisition) of net position
that applies to a future period)s) and is not recognized as an
an outflow (inflow) of resources (expense/expenditure) (revenues) until then.
Pension contributions 392,910
OPEB contributions 464
Pension investment earnings 448,015
Pension difference in experience 162,325
Fension changes in assumptions 16,778
OPEB difference in experience (3,541)
OPEB changes in assumptions (724)
Deferred charge on refunding 931,344
Deferred loss on refunding {9,955)
Some liabilities, including bonds payable and deferred charges
are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.
Accrued interest {64,350)
Premiums on bonds payable {1,433,926)
Compensated absences payable (175,828)
Non-current liabitities due in one year (1,925,000)
Non-current liabilities due in more than one year (30,105,000)
Nel pension liability (3,916,064)
OPEB liability {102,235)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 31,608,311

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Capital
General Debt Service Metro Improvements
Fund Fund Park PID Fund
Revenues
Property tax 8 882,166 % 1,080,859 % 1,148,227 % -
Sales tax 6,286,609 - - -
Franchise and local taxes 484,435 - - _ -
Hotel occupancy taxes - - - -
Intergovernmental revenue 518,641 - - 1,047,672
License and permits 949,745 - - -
Charges for services 80,533 - - -
Fines and forfeitures 11,846 - - -
Investment income 20,239 1,051 191,791 -
Other revenues 106,890 - - -
Total Revenues 9,341,104 1,081,910 1,340,018 1,047,672
Expenditures
Current:
General government 2,597,966 7,633 - -
Public safety 2,880,678 - - -
Public works 1,451,958 - - -
Community development 105,375 - - - |
Technology 335,004 - - - i
Tourism - - - -
Garbage collection 281,171 - - - |
Debt service: !
Principal - 1,695,000 380,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges - 643,787 836,298 - :
Bond issuance costs - 111,344 - -
Capital outlay - - 1,221,883 2,102,071
Total Expenditures 7,652,152 2,457,764 2,438,181 2,102,071
Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures 1,688,952 (1,375,854) (1,098,163) {1,054,399)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 437,913 1,195,393 - 1,922,610
Transfers (out) {2,053,596) - - -
Bond proceeds - 2,940,000 - -
Bond premium - 253,781 - -
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent - (3,082,437} - -
Sale of capital assets 62,160 - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,553,523) 1,306,737 - 1,922,610
Net Change in Fund Balances 135,429 (69,117) (1,098,163) 868,211
Beginning fund balances 7,413,939 104,442 11,280,935 763,454
Ending Fund Balances  $ 7549368 % 35325 % 10,182,772 % 1,631,665

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Hotel

Occupancy
Fund

Nonmajor

Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

1,481,768

10,101
20,111

$

3,111,252
6,286,609
484,435
1,481,768
1,566,313
949,745
80,533
22,540
223182
127,001

1,511,980

14,337,813

858,516

73,398
127,513
25,546

2,605,599
2,880,678
1,525,356
232,888
360,550
858,516
281,171

2,075,000
1,480,085

111,344
3,323,954

858,516

226,457

15,735,141

653,464

(156,473)

(211,328)

128,919

(1,397,328)

3,684,835
(2,210,069)
2,940,000
253,781
(3,082,437)
62,160

(156,473)

128,919

1,648,270

496,991
3,232,447

(82,409)
730,724

250,942
23,525,941

$

3,729,438

$

648,315 §

23,776,883
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay

Capital contributions

Depreciation expense

Transfer of assets to business-type activities
Adjustment for sale of capital assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Property taxes

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds,
Compensated absences
Accrued interest
Pension expense
OPEB liability
Amortization of deferred charges on refunding
Amortization of deferred loss on refunding
Amortization of debt premium

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases, certificates of obligation)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds, Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
premiums, discounts, and similar items when they are first issued; whereas,
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term
debt and related items.

Issuance of debt

Bond premium

Debt refunding

Bond premium refunding
Deferred loss on refunding
Principal payments

250,942

3,477,702
1,713,502
(1,437,654)
(870,246)

(6,583)

7,031

39,402
21,459
(179,895)

(8,356)
(87,132)
255
111,864

(2,940,000)
(253,781)
3,030,000
62,647
(10,210)
2,075,000

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities  $
See Notes to Financial Statements,
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City of Shenandoah, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2019

Accounts and other receivables, net

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Net depreciable capital assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Pension contributions
OPEB contributions
Pension changes in assumptions

Pension investment earnings
Pension difference in experience

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits

Total Current Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Compensated absences payable, current

Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Compensated absences payable, noncurrent

Net pension liability
OPEB liability

Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB difference in experience
OPEB assumption changes

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Total Liabilities

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Net Position

32

Water &
Sewer

$ 397,218
436,811
834,029

2,413,040
15,724,831

18,137,871
18,971,900

56,543
67
2415
64,473
23,360
146,858

68,689
29,696
78,257
25,082
201,724

2,787
563,556
14,712
782,779

510
104
614

18,137,871
197,494

$ 18,335,365




City of Shenandoah, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Operating Revenues
Woater sales

Sewer revenue
Penalties and reconnect fees
Groundwater reduction plan fees
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel

Supplies and services
Maintenance
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nenoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income
Other revenue
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income Before Transfers and Confributions

Transfers and Contributions
Developer fees
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total Transfers and Contributions

Change in Net Position
Beginning net position

Ending Net Position

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

Water &
Sewer

1,341,720
1,000,773
134,995
118,173

2,595,661

563,876
247,369
397,281
597,225

1,805,751

789,910

2,884
18,205
21,089

810,999

168,078
870,462

(1,474,982)

(436,442)

374,557

17,960,808

18,335,365




City of Shenandoah, Texas

STATEMENT OF CASH FIL.OWS
PROPRIETARY FUND (Page 1 of 2)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfer from other funds

Transfer to other funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Yinancing Activities

Purchase of capital assets
Developer fees
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest on investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning cash and cash equivalents

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents

See Notes to Financial Statements,
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Water &
Sewer

$ 2,504,973
(515,379)
(648,840)

1,340,754

216
(1,474,982)

(1,474,766)

(16,570)
168,078
151,508

21,089
21,089
38,585

358,633

$ 397,218




City of Shenandoah, Texas

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND (Page 2 of 2)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Water &
Sewer
Reconciliation of Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating Income $ 789,910
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided:
Depreciation 597,225
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in;

Accounts receivable (78,039)
Deferred outflows - pension and OPEB contributions (7,094)
Deferred outflows - pension investment earnings {55,804)
Deferred outflows - pension investment refurns {64,473}
Deferred inflows - pension and OPEB losses on investments (36,778)
Deferred inflows - OPEB assumption changes 1,230
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (4,190)
Customer deposits (12,649)
Net pension liability 211,003
QPEB liability 413

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities § 1,340,754

Schedule of Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Transfer of capital assets from governmental activities $ 870,246

See Notes to Financial Statements,
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A, Reporting Entity

The City of Shenandoah, Texas (the “City”) was incorporated in 1974. The City is an
independent political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an elected council and a
mayor and is considered a primary government. The City provides a full range of municipal
setvices including public safety, streets, parks and recreation, community development,
planning and zoning, and general administrative services. In addition, the City provides
water and sewer service as an enterprise function of the City.

The City is an independent political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an elected
council and a mayor and is considered a primary government. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements shave been prepared based
on considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or
functions as part of the City’s financial reporting entity. The Shenandoah Municipal
Development District (“SMDD") is legally separate and presented as a discretely presented
component unit. The Metro Park Public Improvement District, although legally separate, is
considered part of the reporting entity. No other entities have been included in the City’s
reporting entity. Additionally, as the City is considered a primary government for financial
reporting purposes, its activities are not considered a part of any other governmental or
other type of reporting entity.

Considerations regarding the potentjal for inclusion of other entities, organizations or
functions in the City's financial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally
accepted accounting principles. These same criteria are evaluated in considering whether
the City is a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity. The overriding
clements associated with prescribed criteria considered in determining that the City's
financial reporting entity status is that of a primary government are that it has a separately
elected governing body; it is legally separate; and is fiscally independent of other state and
local governments. Additionally, prescribed criteria under generally accepted accounting
principles include considerations pertaining to organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and considerations pertaining to organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete. -

Blended Component Units

Metro Park Public Improvement District (“PID”)

The Metro Park Public Improvement District (the “PID”) was created pursuant to the Public
Improvement District Assessment Act, Subchapter A of Chapter 372, 'Texas Local
Government Code, as amended (the “PID Act”) and a resolution of the City Council. The
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

purpose of the PID is to finance the Costs of Authorized Improvements that confer a special
benefit on the assessed property within the PID, all of which is located within the corporate
limits of the City. The PID is governed by the City Council, and accordingly has been
reported as a blended component unit.

Discretely Presenfed Component Units

Shenandoah Municipal Development District

The Shenandoah Municipal Development District (“SMDD”) is a political subdivision of the
City of Shenandoah, authorized under Chapter 377 of the Texas Government Code, which
was formed on May 9, 2009 when the citizens of Shenandoah approved its creation and
authorized it to impose a one-half percent sales tax to finance development projects
beneficial to the District. State law allows the District to collect a sales tax up to one-half of
one percent, and tax receipts began in October 2009,

The SMDD is governed by a five-member board of directors. Originally, the City Council
decided that three council members would sit on the board. The Council then decided that
the board will consist of two council members and the remaining directors appointed by the
Council and serve at the Council’s will. The SMDD is legally separate from the City and is
not fiscally dependent on the City. Given these facts, the SMDD is reported as a discretely
presented component unit. The District was created for the purpose of planning, acquiring,
establishing, developing, consulting, or renovating one or more development projects, as
defined by law.

. Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are
interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental
funds while business-type activities incorporate data from the government's enterprise
funds, Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the
proprietary funds.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where
the amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other
charges between the government’s water and transit functions and various other functions of
the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including

its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund
category; governmental and proprietary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund

The general fund is used to account for all financial transactions not properly includable
in other funds. The principal sources of revenues include local property taxes, sales and
franchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, and charges for services,
Expenditures include general government, public safety, public works, community
development, and garbage collection. The general service fund is considered a major fund
for reporting purposes.

Debt Service Fund

The debt service fund is used to account for the payment of interest and principal on all
general obligation bonds and other long-term debt of governmental funds. The primary
source of revenue for debt service is local property taxes. The debt service fund is
considered a major fund for reporting purposes.

Metro Park Public Improvement District (“PID")

The purpose of the PID is to finance the costs of authorized improvements that confer a
special benefit on the assessed property within the PID, all of which is located within the
corporate limits of the City.

Capital Improvements Fund

This fund is a capital projects fund used to account for capital improvements that occur,
The fund is considered a major fund for reporting purposes.

Hotel Occupancy Fund
This fund accounts for funds derived from hotel and motel occupancy taxes and is legally

restricted to promote tourism within the City. The fund is considered a major fund for
reporting purposes.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:
Water and Sewer Fund

This fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the residents
of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of
the water production and distribution system, water collection and treatment systems.
The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-
term debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility customers.

During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various
purposes, Any residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other
funds and advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial
statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e.,
the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances
between the funds included in business-type activities (ie., the enterprise funds) are
eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type
activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between
funds. In fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers
infout. While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds
included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds
included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
transfers in the business-type activities column,

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of
accounting indicates the timing of iransactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
tlows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Tssuance of long-term debt
and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current
tiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all
eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within
60 days of yearend). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been
met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this
revenue source (within 60 days of yearend). All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The proprietary, pension and other postemployment benefit trust, and private-purpose trust
funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Agency funds have no measurement focus but utilize the accrual basis of
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities.

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows/Inflows, Liabilities, and Fund Equity or Net Position
1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. Tor the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund types
consider temporary investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Reporting for Certain Investments
and External Investment Pools, the City reports all investments at fair value, except for “money

41




City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

market investments” and “2a7-like pools.” Money market investments, which are short-term
highly liquid debt instruments that may include U.S. Treasury and agency obligations, are
reported at amortized costs. Investment positions in external investment pools that are
operated in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940, such as TexPool, are reported using the pools’ share price.

The City has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds as
defined in the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, of the Texas Governmental Code.
In summary, the City is authorized to invest in the following:

Direct obligations of the U.S. Government
' Fully collateralized certificates of deposit and money market accounts
Statewide investment pools

2. Fair Value Measurement

The City has applied Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB”) Statement No.
72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. GASB Statement No. 72 provides guidance for
determining a fair value measurement for reporting purposes and applying fair value to
certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements.

3. Receivables and Interfund Transactions

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as either “interfund receivables/payables”
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-
current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds” in the fund financial statements. If the transactions
are between the primary government and its component unit, these receivables and payables
are classified as “due to/from component unit/primary government.” Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-ty pe activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance nonspendable account in the
applicable governmental fund to indicate they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financial resources.

All trade receivables are shown net of any allowance for uncollectible amournts.

4, Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1
for all real and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

Code. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before Bebruary 1
of the year following the year in which imposed. Penalties are calculated after February 1 up
to the date collected. Under state law, property taxes levied on real property constitute a lien
on the real property which cannot be forgiven without specific approval of the State
Legislature. The lien expires at the end of twenty years. Taxes levied on personal property
can be deemed uncollectible by the City.

5, Inventories and Prepaid Items

The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when the
related liability is incurred, (i.e., the purchase method). The inventories are valued at the
lower of cost or market using the first-in/first-out method. Certain payments to vendors
reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods (prepaid expenditures) are recognized as
expenditures when utilized.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government, as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded
at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Interest costs incurred in connection with construction of enterprise fund capital assets are
capitalized when the effects of capitalization materially impact the financial statements.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful years.

Estimated
Asset Description Useful Life
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and equipment 3 - 20 years
Infrastructure 30 - 40 years
Water and sewer system 40 years
Buildings and improvements 30 - 40 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

7. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure)
until then. The government only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It
is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of
refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the
shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. In addition to liabilities, the statement
of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of
item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues
from three sources: property taxes, fines, and special assessments. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become
available.

8. Net Position Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources, In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
government’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted — net position is applied.

9. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance).
In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
government’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using
any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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10. Tund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself
can establish limitations on the use of resources through the following spending constraints:

+ Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in spendable form (such as
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact.

* Restricted fund balance ~ amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers
(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through
constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

¢ Committed fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City itself,
using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e. City council). To be reported
as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City takes the
same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

* Assigned fund balance — amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent
can be expressed by City Council or by an official or body to which the Council
delegates the authority.

* Unassigned fund balance — amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive
amounts are reported only in the general fund.

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of
decision-making authority. The governing council is the highest level of decision-making
authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the
fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove
or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the
government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed.
The governing body (council) has by resolution authorized the finance director to assign
fund balance. The council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund
balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent
year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential
to either remove or revise a commitment.
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11. Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary
fund statements consist of unpaid, accumulated vacation balances. The liability has been
calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who
currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are
expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are
included. Vested or accumulated vacation leave and compensated leave of government-wide
and proprietary funds are recognized as an expense and liability of those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees,

It is the City's policy to liquidate compensated absences with future revenues rather than
with currently available expendable resources. Accordingly, the City's governmental funds
recognize accrued compensated absences when it is paid.

12. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of
net position. The long-term debt consists primarily of bonds payable and accrued
compensated absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements until due. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources, net of the
applicable premium or discount and payments of principal and interest reported as
expenditures. In the governmental fund types, issuance costs, even if withheld from the
actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. However, claims
and judgments paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial
statements only for the portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial
resources.

Long-term debt and other obligations, financed by proprietary funds, are reported as
liabilities in the appropriate funds. For proprictary fund types, bond premiums, and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method, if material. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount.

Assets acquired under the terms of capital leases are recorded as liabilities and capitalized in
the government-wide financial statements at the present value of net minimum lease
payments at inception of the lease. In the year of acquisition, capital lease transactions are
recorded as other financing sources and as capital outlay expenditures in the general fund.
Lease payments representing both principal and interest are recorded as expenditures in the
general fund upon payment with an appropriate reduction of principal recorded in the
government-wide financial statements.
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13. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

14. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS} and additions
to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the
period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are
legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

15, Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”)

The City has implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement applies to the individual
employers (TMRS cities) in the TMRS Supplemental Death Benefits (SDB) plan, with retiree
coverage. The TMRS SDBF covers both active and retiree benefits with no segregation of
assets, and therefore doesn’t meet the definition of a trust under GASB No. 75 (i.e,, no assets
are accumulated for OPEB) as such the SDBF is considered to be an unfunded OPEB plan.
For purposes of reporting under GASB 75, the retiree portion of the SDBF is not considered a
cost sharing plan and is instead considered a single employer, defined benefit OPEB plan.
The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal
to the employee’s annual salary, calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings on
which TMRS deposits are made, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death. The
death benefit amount for retirees is $7,500. GASB No. 75 requires the liability of employers
and nonemployer contributing entities to employees for defined benefit OPEB {net OPEB
liability) to be measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to
be provided to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees’
past periods of service (total OPEB liability), less the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary
net posifion,
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H. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-fotal
governmental funds and net position-governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term
liabilities, including bonds, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of
activities,

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds
and changes in net position of governmental states that, “the issuance of long-term debt {e.g.,
bonds) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities.”

II1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) for the general, debt service, special revenue, discretely presented
component units, and utility funds. The original budget is adopted by the City Council prior
to the beginning of the year. The legal level of control as defined by the City Charter is the
function level. No funds can be transferred or added to a budgeted item without Council
approval. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year. Several supplemental budget
appropriations were made during the year.

A, Expénditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended September 30, 2019, expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal
level of control as follows:

General Fund;

General government $ 477373
Public works $ 19,182
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IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and Investments

As of September 30, 2019, the primary government had the following investments:

Weighted
Average Maturity
Investment Type Value {Years)
External investment pools 3 488,097 0.09
Total fair value 8 488,097
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.09

As of September 30, 2019, the discretely presented component unit had the following

investments:
Weighted
Average Maturity
Investment Type Value (Years)
External investment pools $ 1,145,913 0.0%
Total fair value $ 1,145,913
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.09

Interest rate risk In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average of maturity not to exceed one year;
structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for
ongoing operations; monitoring credit ratings of portfolio position to assure compliance with
rating requirements imposed by the Public Funds Investment Act; and invest operating
funds primarily in short-term securities or similar government investment pools,

Credit risk The City’s investment policy limits investments to obligations of the United
States, State of Texas, or their agencies and instrumentalities with an investment quality
rating of not less than “A” or its equivalent, by a nationally recognized investment rating
firm. Other obligations must be unconditionally guaranteed (either express or implied) by
the full faith and credit of the United States Government or the issuing U.S. agency and
investment pools with an investment quality not less than AAA or AAA-m, or equivalent, by
at least one nationally recognized rating service. As of September 30, 2019, the City’s
investment in TexPool was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

Custodial credit risk — deposits In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. State statutes require that all deposits
in financial institutions be insured or fully collateralized by U.S. government obligations or
its agencies and instrumentalities or direct obligations of Texas or its agencies and
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instrumentalities that have a market value of not less than the principal amount of the
deposits. As of September 30, 2019, the market values of pledged securities and FDIC
exceeded bank balances.

Custodial credit visk — investments For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment
policy requires that it will seek to safekeeping securities at financial institutions, avoiding
physical possession. Further, all trades, where applicable, are executed by delivery versus
payment to ensure that securities are deposited in the City’s safekeeping account prior to the
release of funds.

TexPool

TexPool was established as a trust company with the Treasurer of the State of Texas as
trustee, segregated from all other trustees, investinents, and activities of the trust company.
The State Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool.
Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence operations, designation of
management, and accountability for fiscal matters. Additionally, the State Comptroller has
established an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and other persons
who do not have a business relationship with TexPool. The advisory board members review
the investment policy and management fee structure. Finally, Standard & Poor’s rate
TexPool AAAm. As arequirement to maintain the rating, weekly portfolio information must
be submitted to Standard & Poor’s, as well as to the office of the Comptroller of Public
Accounts for review. At September 30, 2019, the fair value of the portion in TexPool
approximates fair value of the shares, There were no limitations or restrictions on
withdrawals.
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B. Receivables

The following comprise receivable balances of the primary government at year end:

Debt Hotel Water &
General Service Occupancy Sewer Total

Property tax $ 23,190 & 26675 § - 5 - % 49,865
Sales tax 948,407 - - - 948,407
Franchise tax 40,555 - - - 40,555
Mixed beverage taxes 79,585 - “ - 79,585
Hotel oceupancy taxes - - 113,014 - 113,014
Accounts, net 9,231 - - 437,612 446,843
Allowance - - - (801) {801)

Total $ 1,100968 § 26675 & 113,014 $ 436811 $ 1,677,468

The following comprise receivable balances of the discretely presented component unit at

yeat end:

Sales tax
Total
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C. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets for the year end was as

follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets being depreciated

Beginning Decreases/ Ending

Balances Increases Reclassifications Balances
$ 3,929,303 - % - 8 3,929,303
3,125,877 4,816,179 (870,246) * 7,071,810
7,055,180 4,816,179 (870,246) 11,001,113
35,883,590 33,472 - 35,917,062
10,793,493 42,104 - 10,835,597
2,542,965 299,449 (118,868) 2,723,546
49,220,048 375,025 (118,868) 49,476,205
(11,362,478} (502,939) - (12,265,417)
(2,288,080) (301,916) - (2,589,995)
(1,934,041) (232,799) 112,285 (2,054,555)
(15,584,599) (1,437,654) 112,285 (16,909,968)
33,635,449 (1,062,629) (6,583) 32,566,237
3,753,550 % (876,829 & 43,567,350

Total Capital Assets § 40,690,629

*Represents capital assets transferred to the City’s proprietary fund.

Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government $ 338,819
Public safety 159,795
Public works 932,573
Tourism 6,467

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense  § 1,437,654
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A summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets for the year end was as
follows:
Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Balances Increases Reclassifications Balances
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,673,568 % - 8 - b 1,673,568
Construction in progress - - 739,472 739,472
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,673,568 - 739,472 2,413,040
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Furniture and equipment 754,593 16,570 - 771,163
Water and sewer system 30,587,262 - 130,774 30,718,036
Total capital assets being depreciated 31,341,855 16,570 130,774 31,489,199
Less accumulated depreciation
Furniture and equipment (461,707) (40,762) - {502,469)
Water and sewer system (14,705,436) {556,463) - (15,261,899)
Total accumulated depreciation (15,167,143} (697,225) - {15,764,368)
Net capital assets being depreciated 16,174,712 613,795 130,774 15,724,831
Total Capital Assets $ 17,848,280 % 613,795 § 870,246 * % 18,137,871

*Represents capital assets transferred from the City’s governmental activities.

Depreciation was charged to business-type activities functions as follows:

Water department $ 403,705
Sewer department 193,520
Total Business-Type Activities Depreciation Expense  § 597,225

D. Deferred Charge/Gain on Refunding

A deferred charge resulting from the issuance of the 2013 general obligation refunding
bonds has been recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and is being amortized to
interest expense over the term of the refunded debt. Current year balances for
governmental activities totaled $384,622. Current year amortization expense for
governmental activities totaled $48,078.

A deferred charge resulting from the issuance of the 2015 general obligation refunding

bonds has been recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and is being amortized to
interest expense over the term of the refunded debt. Current year balances for
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governmental activities totaled $546,722. Current year amortization expense for
governmental activities totaled $39,054.

A deferred gain resulting from the issuance of the 2019 general obligation refunding bonds
has been recorded as a deferred inflow of resources and is being amortized to interest
expense over the term of the refunded debt. Current year balances for governmental
activities totaled $9,955. Current year amortization for governmental activities totaled $255.

E. Accrued Liabilities

The following comprise accrued liability balances of the primary government at year end:

Hotel Water &
General Occupancy Sewer Total
Accrued wages $ 128503 % 5421  § 17,201 % 151,125
Accrued taxes 8,270 - - 8,270
Contingent accrued severance 27460 - - 27,460
Other 4,537 - 12,495 17,032

Total § 168,770  § 5421  § 2969 § 203,887

F. Compensated Absences

The following comprise compensated absences balances of the primary government at year
end:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 216,230 % - % (39,402) % 176,828
Total Governmental Activities § 216,230  § - 3 (39,402) % 176,828

Business-Type Activities:

k=23

27,865 % - 3 - $ 27,869
27869 % - $ - $ 27,869

Compensated Absences
Total Business-Type Activities

R
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G. Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in the City’s total governmental long-term liabilities
for the year ended. In general, the City uses the debt service fund to liquidate governmental
long-term liabilities.

Amonnts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Refunding Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Certificates of Obligation % 680,000 & - % - % (3350000 % 345,000 % 343,000
General Improvement Bonds 4,165,600 - (3,030,000) {765,000) 370,000 370,000
General Obligation Refunding Bonds 14,150,000 2,940,000 - {595,000) 16,495,000 960,000
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds -PID 15,200,000 - - {380,000) 14,820,000 220,000
Less: Deferred Amounts
Issuance Premium 1,354,656 253,781 (62,647) {111,864) 1,433,926 -

Total Governmental Activities $ 35549656 § 3,193,781 § (3,092,647) $ (2,186864) $ 33,463,926 $ 1,925,000

Long-term Liabilities Due in More than One Year $ 31

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities in the
governmental funds. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but
rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.
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Long-term debt at year end was comprised of the following debt issues:

Interest Maturity Original Current
Description Rates Date Balance Balance
Governmental Activities:

2008 Certificates of obligation 3.5%-4.125% 8/15/2020 § 2225000 % 170,000
2009 Certificates of obligation 2%-4% 8/15/2020 2,405,000 175,000
Total Certificates of Obligation $ 4,630,000 $ 345,000
2009 General improvement bonds 2-4.5% 8/15/2020 6,395,000 370,000
Total General Improvement Bonds $ 16,355,000 §$ 370,000
2013 General obligation refunding bonds 2-3.5% 8/15/2027 7,345,000 5,025,000
2015 General obligation refunding bonds 2%-4% 8/15/2033 8,670,000 8,570,000
2019 General obligation refunding bonds 3.00% 8/15/2031 2,940,000 2,900,000
Total General Obligation Refunding Bonds $ 18,955,000 $ 16,495,000
2018 Special Revenue Assessment Bonds - PID 4.5-5.7% 9/1/2047 15,200,000 14,820,000

Total General Obligation Refunding Bonds $ 15,200,000 $ 14,820,000

Total Governmental Activities $ 55,140,000 $ 32,030,000
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The annual requirements to amortize governmental activities debt issues outstanding at
year ending were as follows:

Governmental Activities

General Obligation
Yearending  General Improvement Bonds Certificates of Obligation Refunding Bonds
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 $ 370,000  § 14,800 § 345,000 3 13,800 § 990,000 % 584,150
2021 - - - - 1,745,000 557,300
2022 - - - - 1,805,000 507,875
2023 - - - - 1,870,000 443,775
2024 - - - - 1,735,000 377,325
2025 - - - - 1,585,000 316,575
2026 - - - - 1,645,000 258,775
2027 - - - - 1,705,000 198,800
2028 - - - - 1,045,000 136,600
2029 - - - - 550,000 94,800
2030 - - - - 575,000 72,800
2031 - - - - 595,000 49,800
2032 - - - - 320,000 26,000
2033 - - - - 330,000 13,200
Total $ 370,000 § 14,800 § 345,000 % 13,800 $ 16495000 % 3,637,775
Governmental Activities
Year ending Special Revenue Bonds - PID
September 30, Principal Interest

2020 $ 220,000 % 817,430

2021 235,000 807,530

2022 245,000 796,955

2023 260,000 785,930

2024 275,000 774,230

2025 295,000 760,480

2026 310,000 745,730

2027 330,000 730,230

2028 350,000 713,730

2029 370,000 696,230

2030 390,000 675,510

2031 415,000 653,670

2032 © 440,000 630,430

2033-2047 10,685,000 5,491,400

Total $ 14,820,000 § 15,079,485
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H. Advance Refunding

On June 20, 2019, the Town issued $2,940,000 in general obligation refunding bonds with an
interest rate of 3%. The proceeds were used to advance refund $3,030,000 of outstanding
2011 general improvement bonds which had an interest rate of 3%-4.25%%. The net
proceeds of $3,082,437 (after payment of $112,721 in accrued interest and other issuance
costs) were deposited with an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt service
payment on the refunded bonds. As a result, the obligations are considered defeased and
the liability for those bonds have been removed from the statement of net position.

The net carrying amount of the old debt exceeded the reacquisition price by $10,210. This
amount is being amortized over the remaining life of the refunding debt. This advance
refunding reduced its total debt service payments by $268,063 and resulted in an economic
gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $240,371.

L. Interfund Transactions

Transfers between the primary government funds during the year were as follows:

Transfer Out

Transfer In; General Hotel Occupancy Water & Sewer Total
Debt service $ 687,857 § - % 507,536 % 1,195,393
General - 137,730 300,183 437,913
Capital improvements 1,273,677 7,500 641,433 1,922,610
Water and sewer - 216 - 216
Nonmajor 92,062 11,027 25,830 128,919
Total § 2,0535% § 156,473 % 1,474,982 § 3,685,051

Additionally, the City transferred assets that were completed within the City's
governmental activity funds to the water and sewer fund upon completion for the amount
of $870,246. These transfers were not at the governmental fund level as they are related to
capital assets that are only recorded at the government wide level. Transferred assets can be
seen between the governmental activities capital assets and business-type activities capital
assets in note IV.C.
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J. Fund Equity

The City records fund balance restrictions on the fund level to indicate that a portion of the
fund balance is legally restricted for a specific future use or to indicate that a portion of the
fund balance is not available for expenditures.

The following is a list of fund balances restricted/committed by the City:

Restricted Committed

Debt service $ 35325 % -
Tourism 3,729,438 -
Municipal court 22,195 * -
Public safety 6,543 -
Public improvement 10,182,772 -
Capital projects 1,631,665 -
Tree maintenance 29,492 -
Equipment replacement - 584,359
Land - 3,494
Park improvements 2,232 -

Total % __15.632.662 % 587,853

*Restricted by enabling legislation
V. OTHER INFORMATION
A, Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City
participates along with over 2,800 other entities in the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pools. The Pool purchases commercial insurance at group rates for
participants in the Pool. The City has no additional risk or responsibility to the Pool outside
of the payment of insurance premiums, The City has not significantly reduced insurance
coverage or had settlements which exceeded coverage amounts for the past three years.

B. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from granting agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amounts of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
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incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation,
recent claim settlement trends, including frequency and amount of payouts, and other
economic and social factors.

C. Arbitrage

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage consisting of complex regulations
with respect to issuance of tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986, Arbitrage regulations
deal with the investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the
interest yield paid to bondholders. Generally, all interest paid to bondholders can be
retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported and paid to the Internal
Revenue Service at least every five years for applicable bond issues. Accordingly, there is
the risk that if such calculations are not performed correctly, a substantial liability to the City
could result. The City does anticipate that it will have an arbitrage liability and performs
annual calculations to estimate this potential liability. The City will also engage an arbitrage
consultant to perform the calculations in accordance with Internal Revenue Service’s rules
and regulations if indicated.

D. Pension Plans

Texas Municipal Retirement Systems

1. Plan Description

The City participates as one of 887 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance
with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent
multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The
TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the System with a six-
member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's
defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.

2. Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by
the governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing
TMRS.
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At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with
interest, and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an
annuity, Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments
options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump
Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot
exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options
available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2018 Plan Year 2017

Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7.0%

Matching ratio {city to 2tol 2to1

employee)

Years required for vesting 5 5

Service retirement eligibility

(expressed as age / years of 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20

service)

Updated service credit 100% Repeating Transfers 100% Repeating Transfers
- Annuity increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI 70% of CPI

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 22
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 44
Active employees 49
Total 115

3, Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross
earnings, and the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted
by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution
rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN)
actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount
to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City of Shenandoah were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross
earnings during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Shenandoah were
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17.61% and 16,93% in calendar years 2018 and 2019, respectively. The City’s contributions to
TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2019, were $617,571, and were equal to the required
contributions.

4, Net Pension Liability

The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the Total
Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions:

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year

Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table, Mortality rates for active members,
retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy
Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and
female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-
distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used
with males rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-
forward for both males and females, In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate is applied to
reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected
on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements
subject to the 3% floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the
experience of TMRS over the four year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014,
They were adopted in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The
post-retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate
(APRs) are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through
2011 and dated December 31, 2013. In conjunction with these changes first used in the
December 31, 2013 valuation, the System adopted the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost
method and a one-time change to the amortization policy.

Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital

appreciation as well as the production of income in order to satisfy the short-term and long-
term funding needs of TMRS.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2019

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. In determining their best estimate of a
recommended investment return assumption under the various alternative asset allocation
portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an
adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an
adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of
return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real

Rate of Return (Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.30%
International Equity 17.5% 6.10%
Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.00%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 3.39%
Real Return 10.0% 3.78%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.44%
Absolute Return 10.0% 3.56%
Private Equity 5.0% 7.75%
Total 100.0%
Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measute the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer
contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the
pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.
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September 30, 2019

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate
of 6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Increase

1% Decrease Current Single Rate

Balance at 12/31/17
Changes for the year;
Service Cost
Interest
Change in benefit terms
Difference between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions — employer
Contributions -- employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of emp. contributions
Administrative expense
Other changes

Net changes
Balance at 12/31/18

5.75% Assumption 6.75% 7.75%
$ 6,996,961 § 4,479,620 % 2,473,341
Changes in the Net Pension Liability:
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension

Liability (a) Position (b) Liability (a) — (b)
$ 12,843,305 9,905,363 § 2,937,942
608,566 - 608,566
872,488 - 872,488
569,256 - 569,256
- 580,544 (580,544)
- 230,767 (230,767)
- (296,645) 296,645

(443,687) (443,687) -
- (5,734) 5,734
- (300) 300
1,606,623 64,945 1,541,678
$ 14,449,928 9,970,308 § 4,479,620

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a
separately-issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at

www.linrs.com.
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5. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $843,878.

At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred (Inflows)

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
economic experience $ 185,685 $ -
Changes in actuarial assumptions 19,193 -
Difference between projected and
investment earnings 512,488 -
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 449,453 -

Total % 1,166,819 § -

The City reported $449,453 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:

2019 % 232,903
2020 109,470
2021 154,833
2022 220160
2023 -
Thereafter -

$ 717,366

6. Supplemental Death Benefits Fund

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term
life insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as
the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBE). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide
group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may
terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an
ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.
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The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal
to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the
12-month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500;
this coverage is an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB.

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance.
The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available
to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund
refiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 18
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 12
Active employees 49
Total 79

The City’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2017, 2018, and 2019 were
$359, $343 and $626, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

Three-Year Contribution Information

Annual Actual
Required Contribution  Percentage of
Plan/ Contribution Made ARC
Calendar Year (Rate) {Rate) Contributed
2017 0.01% 0.01% 100.0%
2018 0.01% 0.01% 100.0%
2019 0.02% 0.02% 100.0%

Total OPEB Liability
The City’s Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions Liability (OPEB) was measured

as of December 31, 2018, and the Total OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.
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Actuarial assumptions:

The Total OPEB Liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year

Overall payroll growth 3.5% to 10.5%, including inflation per year
Discount rate 3.71%

Retirees’ share of benefit-related costs ~ $0

Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through

the Pension Trust and accounted for under
reporting requirements under GASB Statement
No. 68

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members,
retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy
Mottality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and
female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the
gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment
are used with males rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a
3-year set-forward for both males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate
is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates
are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality
improvements subject to the 3% floor.

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 3.71%. The discount rate
was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of December
31, 2018.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount
rate of 3.31%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.31%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (4.31%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Single Rate 1% Increase
(2.71%) Assumption 3.71% (4.71%)
$ 144,768 % 116,947 % 96,126
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at 12/31/17 $ 120,552
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 7,682

Interest 4,110

Difference between expected and

actual experience (4,861)

Changes of assumptions {10,106)

Benefit payments (330)

Net changes (3,605)

Balance at 12/31/18 $ 116,947

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $11,097.

At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the OPEB liability from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Changes in actuarial assumptions $ - (828)
Difference between expected and

actual experience - (4,051)
Contributions subsequent to - -
measurement date 531 -
Total $ 531 % (4,879)

The City reported $531 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting

from contributions subsequent to the measurement date

that will be recognized as a

reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2020.
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be
recoghized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:

2019 $ (595)
2020 (595)
2021 (595)
2022 (598)
2023 (2,496)
Thereafter -

3 (4,879)

E. Restatement

The City restated beginning fund balance/net position within governmental activities due to
a change in fund reporting within the nonmajor governmental funds. In prior years, a few
special revenue funds were consolidated within the general fund. Beginning in the current
year, the funds are now presented separately from the general fund. The restatement of
beginning net position/fund balance is as follows:

Governmental Nonmajor
Activities General Governmental
Prior year ending net position/
fund balance as reported $ 26,612,364 $ 7573609 5 571,054
Reclassification in fund reporting - (159,670) 159,670

Restated beginning net position/fund balance $ 26,612,364 $ 7413939 § 730,724

F. Subsequent Events

There were no material subsequent events through December 27, 2019, the date the financial
statements were issued.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Positive
Budget Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Property tax [ 903,692 % 903,692 % 882,166 $ {21,526)
Sales tax 6,054,030 6,054,030 6,286,609 232,579
Franchise and local taxes 462,100 462,100 484,435 22,335
License and permits 465,000 465,000 949,745 484,745
Charges for services 81,944 81,944 80,533 (1,411)
Intergovernmental revenue 626,959 626,959 518,641 (108,318)
Fines and forfeitures 15,000 15,000 11,846 {(3,154)
Investment income 5,000 5,000 20,239 15,239
Other revenues 85,000 85,000 106,890 21,890
Total Revenues 8,698,725 8,698,725 9,341,104 642,379
Expenditures
Current:
General government 2,105,539 2,120,593 2,597,966 (477,373) *
Public safety 3,736,782 3,736,782 2,880,678 856,104
Technology 365,386 364,881 335,004 29,877
Public works 1,394,915 1,432,776 1,451,958 (19,182) *
Garbage services 291,250 291,250 281,171 10,079
Community development 119,100 119,100 105,375 13,725
Total Expenditures 8,002,972 8,065,382 7,652,152 413,230
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 695,753 633,243 1,688,952 1,055,609
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 449,040 449,040 437,913 (11,127)
Transfers (out) (2,122,931) {2,122,931) {2,053,596) 69,335
Sale of capital assets 45,000 45,000 62,160 17,160
Total Other
Financing Sources (Uses) (1,628,891) (1,628,891) (1,553,523) 75,368

Net Change in Fund Balance § (933,138 & (995,548)

Beginming fund balance
Ending Fund Balance $

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

135429 % 1,130,977
7,413,939

7,549,368

1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

2. * Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOTEL OCCUPANCY FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Revenues
Hotel occupancy taxes
Investment income
Other revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current:
Tourism
Total Expenditures
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers (out)
Total Other
Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning fund balance
Ending Fund Balance

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Positive
Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,530,850 $ 1,530,850 § 1,481,768 5 (49,082)
2,600 2,600 10,101 7,501
- - 20,111 20,111
1,533,450 1,533,450 1,511,980 (21,470)
1,120,699 1,138,839 858,516 280,323
1,120,699 1,138,839 858,516 280,323
412,751 394,611 653,464 258,853
(169,618) (169,618) (156,473) 13,145
(169,618) (169,618) (156,473) 13,145
$ 243,133 % 224,993 496,991 % 271,998
3,232,447

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Years Ended December 31,

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2018 2017 2016 2015

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 608,566 % 641,310  $ 670,410 % 633,992

Interest 872,488 819,403 759,134 699,946

Differences between expected and actual

expetience 369,256 (292,981) {227,957) 66,347

Changes of assumptions - - - 93,017

Benefit payments, including refunds of

participant contributions (443,687) (286,147) (302,194) (226,402)
Net change in tetal pension liability 1,606,623 881,585 899,393 1,266,900
Total pension liability - beginning $ 12,843,305 $ 11961720 § 11,062,327 $ 9795427
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 14449928 § 12,843,305 § 11,961,720 $ 11,062,327
Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 580,544 % 570241 ¢ 571,398 § 534,546

Contributions - membets 230,767 237,920 250,498 239,789

Net investment income {(296,645) 1,141,967 489,670 9,878

Benefit payments, including refunds of

participant contributions (443,687) (286,147) (302,194) (226,402)

Administrative expenses (5,734} (5,924) {5,529) {6,015)

Other (300) (300) (298) (297)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 64,945 1,657,757 1,003,745 551,469
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 9,905,363 8,247,606 7,243,861 6,692,392
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 9970308 $ 9905363 $ 8247606 5 7,243,861
Fund's net pension liability - ending (a}-(b) $§ 4,479,620 § 2937942 § 3714114 $ 3,818,466
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 69.00% 77.12% 68.95% 65.48%
Covered payroll $ 329,672 $ 3384219 $ 3573615 S 3425132
Fund’s net position as a percentage of
covered payroll 135.88% 86.81% 103.93% 111.48%

Notes to schedule:

! This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a

full ten-year trend is compiled, only available information is shown.
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2014

$ 547,482
624,317

61,388

(165,656)

1,067,531
$ 8,727,896
$ 9,795,427

$ 500,912
225,479
332,101

(165,656)
(3,466)
(285)
889,085
5,803,307

$ 6,692,392
$ 3,103,035

68.32%
$ 3,221,134

96.33%

1
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS TO PENSION PLAN

TEXAS MUNICIPAI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Years Ended:

9/30/2019 9/30/2018 9/30/2017 9/30/2016 9/30/2015

Actuarially determined employer
contributions $ 617571 $ BBY,0B2  § 595399 §$ 544668 $ 519256
Contributions in relation to the

actuarially determined contribution $ 617571 $ 559,052 § 595399 $ H44668 $ 519,256
Contribution deficiency (excess) % - % - % - % - % -
Annual covered payroll $ 3609444 $ 3213745 $ 3,593,850 $ 3,430,770 $ 3,329,643
Employer contributions as a 4

percentage of covered payroll 17% 17% 17% 16% 16%

" This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only available information is shown.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS TO PENSION PLAN

Valuation Date:
Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are
calculated as of December 31 and become
effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 27 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year stnoothed market; 15% soft corridor
Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to

the City's plan of benefits, Last updated for the
2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study
of the period 2010 - 2014

Mortality
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected
on a fully generational basis with scale BB

Other Information:
Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS (OPEB) LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS PLAN
Years Ended December 31,

2018 2017 1

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 7582 % 6,768

Interest 4,110 3,859

Differences between expected and actual experience (4,861) -

Changes of assumptions (10,106) 11,391

Benefit payments, including refunds of participant contributions (3300 (339)
Net change in total pension liability (3,605) 21,679
Total pension liability - beginning $ 120,552 % 98,873
Total pension liability - ending $ 116,947 § 120,552 2
Covered payroll $ 3,296,672 $ 3,384,219
Fund's net position as a percentage of covered employee payroll 3,65% 3.56%
Notes to schedule:

! This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until
a full ten-year trend is compiled, only available information is shown.

2 No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB statement No. 75 to pay
related benefits.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

This fund accounts for funds that have been committed to replacing City equipment.

LEOSE FUND

This fund accounts for funds that are used for Law Enforcement Officer Safety Equipment grants to
be used for Law Enforcement Officer Safety Equipment.

DISCRETIONARY COURT FUND
This fund accounts for court fees that are legally restricted for court expenses.

MUNICIPAL COURT FUND
This fund accounts for technology fees that are used for impi'oving the City's technology.
LAND TRUST FUND
This fund accounts for funds to be used for the purchase of land.

TREE FUND

This fund accounts for developer fees used for planting trees and vegetation.

PARK BEAUTIFICATION FUND

This fund accounts for park reservation fees used for park upkeep.
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Assets

City of Shenandoah, Texas
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities

Total Assets

Accounts payable

Fund Balances
Restricted for:

Total Liabilities

Municipal court
Public safety
Tree maintenance

Park improvements

Committed fo

g4

Equipment replacement

Land

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities
and Fund Balances

September 30, 2019

Equipment Discretionary

Tree Fund Replacement LEOSE Court
$ 30,392 % 584,359 % 6543 § 886
$ 30392 % 584,359 § 6,543 % 886
$ 900 % - 5 - 5 -
900 - - -
- o = 886
- - 6,543 -
29,492 - - -
= 584,359 - -
29,492 584,359 6,543 886
$ 30,392 % 584,359 % 6543 § 886
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Total

Municipal Shenandoah  Park Beautification Nonmajor
Court Land Trust Fund Governmental

$ 21,309 % 3494 % 2232 % 649,215
$ 21,309 $ 3,494 % 2232 % 649,215
% - % - 5 - % 900
- - - 900

21,309 - - 22,195

- - - 6,543

- - - 29,492

- - 2,232 2,232

- - - 584,359

- 3,494 - 3,494

21,309 3,494 2,232 648,315

$ 21,309 $ 3,494 $ 2,232 % 649,215
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City of Shenandoah, Texas

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Equipment Discretionary
Tree Fund Replacement LEOSE Court
Revenues
Other revenue $ - % -8 - % -
Fines and forfeitures - - 2,110 369
Total Revenues - - 2,110 369
Expenditures
Community development 127,513 - - -
Public works - 68,530 - -
Technology - 25,546 - -
Total Expenditures 127,513 94,076 - -
Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (127,513) (94,076) 2,110 369
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - 127,411 - 1,508
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - 127,411 - 1,508
Net Change in Fund Balances {127,513) 33,335 2,110 1,877
Beginning fund balances 157,005 551,024 4,433 (991)
Ending Fund Balances § 29492 § 584,359 § 6,543 $ 886
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Total

Muncipal Shenandoah  Park Beautification Nonmajor
Court Land Trust Fund Governmental
$ - % - § 4435 § 4,435
8,215 - - 10,694
8,215 - 4,435 15,129
- - - 127,513
- - 4,868 73,398
- - - 25,546
- - 4,868 226,457
8,215 - (433) (211,328)
- - - 128,919
- - - 128,919
8,215 - (433) {82,409)
13,094 3,494 2,665 730,724
% 21,309 % 3,494 % 2,232 % 648,315
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o Shenandoah City Council
SHENANDOAH AGENDA REPORT

T E X A S

AGENDA DATE: January 22, 2020 ITEM NUMBER: 9-11
DEPARTMENT: Community Development PREPARED BY:  Jackie Thompson

Final Report, Property Location, SUP
PRICING: N/A EXHIBITS: Application, Ordinance

SUBJECT/PROCEEDING:

Final Report regarding the proposed zoning amendment for a special use permit for Medical Services: General. The
proposed zoning amendment is for 1500 Research Forest Drive, Suite 120, Shenandoah, Texas.

Public Hearing regarding the proposed zoning amendment for a special use permit for Medical Services: General. The
proposed zoning amendment is for 1500 Research Forest Drive, Suite 120, Shenandoah, Texas.

Consideration and possible action to approve or deny the proposed zoning amendment for special use permit for
Medical Services: General. The proposed zoning amendment is for 1500 Research Forest Drive, Suite 120, Shenandoah,

Texas.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

The Planning and Zoning Commission will review this item during their Regular Meeting on January 21, 2020. The
Commission’s recommendation will be available during the Council Meeting.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

IV Bars of The Woodlands located at 1500 Research Forest Drive, Suite 120 has requested a Special Use Permit to allow
for Medical Services: General. The Special Use Permit will allow the applicant to provide services which include
intravenous vitamin therapy, NoramTec compression therapy, and intramuscular vitamin injections.

Medical Services: General — Establishments primarily engaged in the provision of personal health services and including
related retail sales activities. Typical uses include medical offices, dental offices, dental laboratories, clinics, or health
maintenance facilities with related sales facilities in the same structure (Section 4.4.44 of the City of Shenandoah
Integrated Development Code “IDC”). The business is located in the “NS” — Neighborhood Services.

APPROVALS:

DEPARTMENT HEAD %ﬂj\g“ & DATE: January 16, 2020
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CITY ADMINISTRATOR VJ\Q = DATE: January 16, 2020
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City Council
January 22, 2020 Public Hearing
Final Report

Subject: IV Bars of The Woodlands has requested a Special Use Permit (SUP) at 1500 Research
Forest Drive, Suite 120, Shenandoah, TX to allow for a Medical Services: General

Public Hearings: Planning & Zoning Commission —January 7, 2020
Planning & Zoning Commission — January 21, 2020
City Council —January 22, 2020

Current Zoning District: “NS” Neighborhood Services

Proposed SUP: The Special Use Permit will allow the applicant to provide services which include
intravenous vitamin therapy, NoramTec compression therapy, and intramuscular vitamin
injections. Medical Services: General — Establishments primarily engaged in the provision of
personal health services and including related retail sales activities. Typical uses include medical
offices, dental offices, dental laboratories, clinics, or health maintenance facilities with related
sales facilities in the same structure (Section 4.4.44 of the City of Shenandoah Integrated
Development Code “IDC”).

Recommendation: The Planning and Zoning Commission will review this item during their
Regular Meeting on January 21, 2019. The Commission’s recommendation will be available
during the Council Meeting.

Prepared by: Jackie Thompson
Community Development Manager

Date Prepared: January 16, 2020



Shenandoah Planning & Zoning Commission
January 7, 2020 and January 21, 2020 Public Hearing
Preliminary Report

Subject: IV Bars of The Woodlands has requested a Special Use Permit (SUP) at 1500 Research
Forest Drive, Suite 120, Shenandoah, TX to allow for a Medical Services: General

Public Hearings: Planning & Zoning Commission —January 7, 2020
Planning & Zoning Commission — January 21, 2020
City Council —January 22, 2020

Current Zoning District: “NS” Neighborhood Services

Proposed SUP: The Special Use Permit will allow the applicant to provide services which include
intravenous vitamin therapy, NoramTec compression therapy, and intramuscular vitamin
injections. Medical Services: General — Establishments primarily engaged in the provision of
personal health services and including related retail sales activities. Typical uses include medical
offices, dental offices, dental laboratories, clinics, or health maintenance facilities with related
sales facilities in the same structure (Section 4.4.44 of the City of Shenandoah Integrated
Development Code “IDC”).

Prepared by: Jackie Thompson
Community Development Manager

Date Prepared: January 3, 2020
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City of Shenandoah, Texas
29955 I-45 North

CITY OF Special Use Permit Shenandoah, Texas 77381
SHENANDOAH 281-298-5522
T E X A S www.shenandoahtx.us

Upon completion return application to Development@shenandoahtx.us

| Contact Information

Property Owner(s): U:@G M C@r’Q

Address: ’PO Yox. Qljtﬁq \r@ X

zip Code:____ | 12 7%’7 Phone: QLL(c = 22’% — o)
Email Address: (‘Dﬂn(\Q@ Al hwre.. QM

Applicants: i\/ Wﬁ DG The \ﬁt’bdh v&f\(l-(

pacress: \SDO_Reseapeh Foeest- e (20 Thu uad [apds K
2ip Code:_ 1+ 380 Phone: t13 - 5 (T2 185

Email Address:__{LY.0.0 n & i'ﬁ/b&@i . (o

Parcel Information l

Type of Business: @@W\‘m@ﬁ‘ A&Q W% (\0 W
Legal Description: %12 5’7 - MI{\&% M?QTO (\JU(\/JE( 67 %A ACQQ% 2—634
Street Address or Location: 6@ \Q@MQK\\ %{Q%\_ -Df\v?,,

| Special Use Permit Request ' q

escription of reques . C (jp
Zromtes 0\ deniny ageved ge The O

Sne Noendoa  HE veAop ey

witl
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\\f\C/\J-j 69\{ \ﬂWV‘E&"\L})g Ur\*ﬁkm\f\ Wa\ej Mv‘ﬂ_ )\

V}—f)\(v\tnf\ W \Xe LS,

[ Submission Information

This application is to be filed with the City of Shenandoah City Secretary:

City of Shenandoah
29955 Interstate 45 North
Shenandoah, Texas 77381



{ Additional Information

Date Application received by the City of Shenandoah:

Owner(s) of record for the above described parcel: LM (%Y\OL ) (\W‘? '

Owner(s) of r d for ?&e Ego 5
Signatur%:v/ Lt J MW’%'%}? Date; \ZI/\ ?) {qot(i

Signature: Date:

Signature: Date:

Note: Signatures are required for all owners of record for the property proposed for Special Use Permit. Attach additional signatures on a separate sheet of paper.

Date Received

Office Use

*Public Hearings*

Parties in interest and citizens shall have an opportunity to be heard at public hearings conducted by the Planning and
Zoning Commission and the City Council before any amendment to a district regulation, restriction, or boundary shall
become effective. Regularly scheduled meetings are as follows and will be held accordingly unless public notice has
been given of a change of dates:

Planning and Zoning Commission (two public hearings): 3 Tuesday of every month at 7:00 p.m.

City Council: 4" Wednesday of every month at 7:00 p.m.

*Protests*

If a protest against a proposed zoning change including PDD and SUP requests has been filed with the City Secretary,
duly signed and acknowledged by the owners of twenty percent (20%) or more, either of the area of the land included in
such a proposed change or those owners of property immediately adjacent to the subject property and extending two
hundred feet (200) there from, such zoning change shall not become effective except by a three-fourths (3/4) vote of
governing body in accordance with the provisions of Section 211.006 of the Texas Local Government Code.

*Resubmission®

Rezoning requests which have been heard and decided by the Council of the City of Shenandoah may not be re-filed
with the city for six (6) months after the date of such decision by the Council, absent a change in circumstances.

Rezoning requests for the same property to a different classification than the denied request may be re-filed prior to the
expiration of six (6) months,



ORDINANCE NO. 0-20-002

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES,
CHAPTER 102, GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR MEDICAL SERVICES: GENERAL FOR 1500
RESEARCH FOREST DRIVE, SUITE 120, SHENANDOAH, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY IN THE
AMOUNT OF $2,000 FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Secretary of the City of Shenandoah, Texas, directed that notices of public hearings
be issued, as required by the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Shenandoah, Texas and laws of the State of
Texas for the purpose of considering a change in the Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City Secretary of said City accordingly caused to be issued and published the notices
required by its Zoning Ordinance and laws of the State of Texas applicable thereto, the same having been
published in a paper of general circulation at least fifteen days prior to the time for such hearing; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to such notice, public hearings were held January 7, 2020, January 21, 202 and
January 22, 2020 allowing all persons wishing to be heard both for and against the aforesaid change in
the Zoning Ordinance to voice their opinions; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of this special use
permit; and

WHEREAS, the tract currently has a zoning classification of Neighborhood Service (NS); and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to grant a Special Use Permit to allow for Medical
Services: General; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that such change would not be detrimental to the public health,
safety, or general welfare in the City of Shenandoah, and as well, the owners and occupants thereof.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Code of Ordinances, City of Shenandoah, Texas, Chapter 102 is hereby amended to grant
a Special Use Permit for Medical Services: General for a IV Bars of The Woodlands located at 1500
Research Forest Drive, Suite 120, Shenandoah, Texas.

Section 2. All provisions of the ordinances of the City of Shenandoah in conflict with the provisions
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other provisions of the Ordinances of the City of
Shenandoah, not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances or parts of
ordinances governing or regulating the same subject matter as that covered herein; provided, however,
that all prior ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with any of the provisions of this
Ordinance are hereby expressly repealed to the extent that such inconsistency is apparent.

Section 4. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this Ordinance
shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the code of Ordinances of the City of Shenandoah,
and upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100



DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall continue shall be
deemed to constitute a separate offense.

Section 5. Itisthe intention of the City Council that this Ordinance, and every provision thereof, shall
be considered severable and the invalidity of any section, clause or provision or part or portion of any
section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of any other portion of this
Ordinance.

Section 6. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and publication
as required by law. If the use is not established by January 22, 2021 and no extension is approved, the
Special Use Permit will expire by its own terms.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this the 22" day of January, 2020.

CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS

M. RITCHEY WHEELER, Mayor
ATTEST:

COURTNEY CLARY, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WILLIAM C. FEREBEE, City Attorney



o Shenandoah City Council
SHENANDOAH AGENDA REPORT

T E X A S

AGENDA DATE: January 22, 2020 ITEM NUMBER: 13
DEPARTMENT: Public Works PREPARED BY:  Joseph Peart
PRICING: N/A EXHIBITS: Arbor Day Proclamation

SUBJECT/PROCEEDING:

2020 Arbor Day Proclamation.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends approval of the proclamation.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Each year the City declares the nationally recognized date for Arbor Day (the last Friday of April) as Arbor Day. The Arbor
Day event will occur on March 7, 2020 from 9am to 12pm (noon) at the public works building.

This proclamation is one of many requirements necessary for the City to maintain its status as a Tree City. National Arbor
Day is recognized on April 24, 2020. This is the same date the City is proposing to proclaim as Arbor Day; however, in
order to coincide better with the local planting season, staff coordinates with the Shenandoah Civic Club to schedule the

annual celebration, tree give away, and plant share on March 7, 2020.

APPROVALS:
-

DEPARTMENT HEAD = ,/,L /= 7»/ DATE: January 14, 2020

CITY ADMINISTRATOR \D\Q — DATE: January 16, 2020
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ll& Day.

Whereas, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of
Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees,
and
Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more
than a million trees in Nebraska, and
Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and
Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and
water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air,
produce life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and
Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes,
fuel for our fires and countless other wood products, and
Whereas, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of
business areas, and beautify our community, and
Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual
renewal.
Now, Therefore, I, Ritch Wheeler , Mayor of the City of
Shenandoah, Texas , do hereby proclaim
April  24th, 2020
In the City of Shenandoah, Texas , and I urge all
citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our
trees and woodlands, and
Further, [ urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being
of this and future generations.
Dated this 22nd day of January 2020

Signed
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o Shenandoah City Council
SHENANDOAH AGENDA REPORT

T E X A S

AGENDA DATE: January 22, 2020 ITEM NUMBER: 14
DEPARTMENT: Administration PREPARED BY:  Courtney Clary
PRICING: EXHIBITS: Ordinance

SUBJECT/PROCEEDING:

Ordinance calling the May 2, 2020 City General Election for the purpose of electing a Mayor and two City Council
members, Positions 1, and 5.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends adoption of the Ordinance calling the May 2, 2020 City General Election.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Ordinance calling the election is part of the normal process and provides details such as which positions are up,
times and dates of the filing period, early voting schedule, and other basic information about how the election is to be

conducted.

Council adopts an Ordinance calling the general election each year. The Ordinance is provided to the election
administrator, along with an Order of Election signed by each member of Council.

APPROVALS:

DEPARTMENT HEAD DATE:

CITY ADMINISTRATOR \U\Q — DATE: January 14, 2020
NI
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ORDINANCE NO. 0-20-003

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR THE HOLDING OF A

GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 2, 2020, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING THREE (3)

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS, MAYOR, AND POSITIONS 1 AND 5; AND PROVIDING DETAILS

RELATING TO THE HOLDING OF SUCH ELECTIONS.

Section 1. In accordance with the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas, a General
Municipal Election is hereby called and ordered for the first Saturday in May, 2020, being May 2, 2020, at
which election all qualified voters of the City may vote for the purpose of electing three (3) city council
members, Mayor, and positions 1 and 5 for full terms.

Section 2. No person's name shall be placed upon the official ballot as a candidate for any of the
above mentioned positions unless such person has filed his or her sworn application, as provided by
Section 141.031, Section 143.004, and Section 143.007 of the Texas Election Code, with the City Secretary
at the City Hall, located at 29955 I-45 North, Shenandoah, Texas 77381, adjusted for weekends and
holidays as provided by Section 1.006, no earlier than January 15, 2020 or later than five o'clock (5:00)
p.m. on February 14, 2020. The City Secretary shall note on the face of each such application, the date
and time of its filing. A declaration of write-in candidacy must be filed with the City Secretary, as provided
by Section 146.054 of the Texas Election Code. The last day for a write-in candidate to declare candidacy
is Tuesday, February 18, 2020, by five o'clock (5:00) p.m. In addition, the last day for a candidate to
withdraw must be received by February 21, 2020, by five o'clock (5:00) p.m.

Section 3. The polls shall be open for voting from seven o'clock (7:00) a.m. until seven o'clock (7:00)
p.m. at the following polling places, to be conducted by the officers appointed by the County Elections
Officer as provided in the Contract for Election Services between the City of Shenandoah, Texas and the
County Elections Officer of Montgomery County, Texas as follows:

For persons located in Voting Precinct No. 24 and 31:
Polling Place: Shenandoah Municipal Complex

Address: 29955 |-45 North
Shenandoah, Texas 77381

Page -1-



Said election officers shall also serve as the early voting ballot board for such election; the Presiding
Judge of such election shall also serve as the presiding officer of the early voting ballot board.

Section 4. In accordance with the Texas Election Code and the Contract for Election Services, the
Contracting Officer shall serve as the regular early voting clerk to receive ballot by mail applications. All
ballot by mail applications received by the City Secretary, must be hand delivered or faxed to the
Contracting Officer as provided in the Contract for Election Services on the day of receipt and the original
application mailed or delivered to the Contracting Officer. Further those persons voting early can vote in
any of the designated early voting locations and at the times set out in Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof
for all purposes. The early voting locations will be open from Monday, April 20, 2020 through Saturday,
April 25, 2020 from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and on Monday and Tuesday, April 27, 2020 and April 28, 2020,
from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Ballots voted by mail shall be sent to:

Suzie Harvey
Elections Administrator
P. O. Box 2646
Conroe, TX 77305-2646

Section 5. Voting shall be conducted by the Contracting Officer utilizing the voting machines and
equipment supplied by the Contracting Officer. All expenditures necessary for the conduct of the election,
purchase of materials, and the employment of all election officials is hereby authorized in accordance
with the Texas Election Code and in accordance with the provisions of the Contract for Election Services.

Section 6. The City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to furnish all necessary election
supplies to conduct such election, and (ii) to post notice of the election, and (iii) to publish notice of the
election, as provided by Chapter 4 and Chapter 51 of the Texas Election Code except as may be provided
in the Contract for Election Services referred to above.

Section 7. The order in which the names of the candidates are to be printed on the ballot shall be
determined by a drawing by the City Secretary, as provided by Section 52.094 of the Texas Election Code.

The City Secretary shall post a notice at City Hall, at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the date on
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which the drawing is to be held, of the time and place of the drawing, and shall also give personal notice
to any candidate who makes written request for such notice and furnishes the City Secretary a self-
addressed, stamped envelope. Each candidate involved in the drawing or a representative designated by
him/her, shall have a right to be present and observe the drawing.

Section 8. The candidates for three (3) Council members receiving the highest number of votes in
each of the positions to be filled shall be declared elected to such positions.

Section 9. Notice of this election shall be given in accordance with the provisions of the Texas
Election Code and returns of such notice shall be made as provided for in said Code. The Mayor shall issue
all necessary orders and writs for such election, and returns of such election shall be made to the City
Secretary immediately after the closing of the polls.

Section 10. Said election shall be held in accordance with the Texas Election Code, as amended,

except as modified by the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22™ day of January, 2020.

CITY OF SHENANDOAH, TEXAS

M. RITCHEY WHEELER, Mayor
ATTEST:

COURTNEY CLARY, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WILLIAM C. FEREBEE, City Attorney

Page -3-



o Shenandoah City Council
SHENANDOAH AGENDA REPORT

T E X A S

AGENDA DATE: January 22, 2020 ITEM NUMBER: 15

DEPARTMENT: Administration PREPARED BY:  Courtney Clary
Election Services Agreement; Joint
Election Agreement, Agreement
PRICING: EXHIBITS: Exhibits

SUBJECT/PROCEEDING:

Election Services Agreement and Joint Election Agreement with Montgomery County and participating entities for the
May 2, 2020 City General Election.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends approval of the Election Services Agreement and the Joint Election Agreement.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Each year, the City contracts with the Montgomery County Elections Office to provide election services and personnel
to conduct the general election. The Joint Election is part of these services and allows multiple entities to share
equipment, personnel and costs of elections taking place on the same date.

The county elections administrator is preparing the estimated cost breakdown and will send it at a later time.
a) Election Services Agreement

The Election Services Agreement outlines the duties and services to be provided by the Montgomery County Elections
Administrator as well as those to be provided by the City.

b) Joint Election Agreement

The Joint Election Agreement provides for the sharing of election equipment, election officials, precinct polling
locations, and electronic voting equipment where appropriate. The agreement also designates the election officer
and provides for associated costs and cancellation of the election (if applicable), among other provisions.

APPROVALS:
DEPARTMENT HEAD DATE: Click here to enter a date.
CITY ADMINISTRATOR \b\t = DATE: January 14, 2020

)
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Joint Election Agreement

Political Subdivision of CITY OF SHENANDOAH

WHEREAS, the undersigned Political Subdivisions (collectively referred to hereinafter as
"Participating Entities") will each hold an election on May 2, 2020; and

WHEREAS, Montgomery County Elections Administrator, Suzie Harvey, as Montgomery
County’s Election Officer, has entered into separate Election Services Agreements with each of the
undersigned Participating Entities wherein the County’s Election Officer will administer elections
occurring on May 2, 2020, to be held in precincts in Montgomery County, as authorized under
Subchapter D of Chapter 31 of the Texas Election Code ("Election Services Agreements"); and

WHEREAS, the Participating Entities desire to enter into a Joint Election Agreement, as
authorized under Chapter 271 of the Texas Election Code, for the purpose of sharing election
equipment, election officials, polling places, and costs where appropriate.

NOW, THEREFORE, Participating Entities enter this Joint Election Agreement under the
terms that follow:

L. Scope of Joint Election Agreement

The Participating Entities enter this Joint Election Agreement ("Agreement") for the purpose of
jointly conducting elections to be held on May 2, 2020 (“Joint Election”).

II. Appoint Election Officer

The Participating Entities appoint Suzie Harvey, Montgomery County Elections Administrator
(“"Contracting Officer”), to serve as the Election Officer to perform the duties and responsibilities of
Election Officer itemized in the Election Services Agreements for the Joint Election.

III. Early Voting and Election Day

Early voting and election day voting shall be held in common precincts where appropriate, at the
dates, times, and locations adopted by Montgomery County Commissioners’ Court and/or
authorized and ordered by the governing body of each Participating Entity.

IV. Joint Election Costs; Adjustment of Costs in the Event of Cancellation of
Election; Payment

The estimated election expenses for each Participating Entity, including administrative costs and
expenses for facilities, personnel, supplies, equipment, and training, are reflected in the Exhibit D -
Cost Estimate incorporated into each Election Services Agreement. The Participating Entities agree
that they will be responsible for and will pay from budgeted funds their share of the actual election
expenses attributable to each entity according to the table incorporated into the Election Services
Agreements as the Final Invoice.



V. Reasonable Cooperation

The Participating Entities agree to reasonably cooperate with each other as is necessary to carry
out the terms of this Agreement.

VI. Miscellaneous Provisions

1. This Agreement becomes effective with respect to each Participating Entity upon execution
by that Participating Entity. The obligations of this Agreement will continue as to each Participating
Entity until each Participating Entity has made full payment of its share of election costs under this
Agreement and its respective Election Services Agreement, which costs are related to the Joint
Election.

2. If for any reason a Participating Entity does not participate in the Joint Election, this Joint
Election Agreement shall remain in effect between all remaining Participating Entities.

3. Notices given under this Agreement must be in writing and may be effected by hand
delivery, fax, email, or by certified mail to the Contracting Officer and/or the Participating Entities
at the addresses listed on their respective signature blocks below.

4, This Agreement may not be amended or modified except in writing executed by the
Contracting Officer and each respective Participating Entity with whom the amendment or
modification has been mutually agreed.

5. The obligations under this Agreement are performable in Montgomery County, Texas.

6. Venue for any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be in Montgomery County, Texas.
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Texas and the United States of America.

7. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a court
of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect the
remaining provisions of this Agreement; and the Participating Entities shall perform their
obligations under this Agreement as expressed in the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

8. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original for all purposes. Faxed signatures and/or electronic signatures shall have the
same force and effect as an original signature.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by Montgomery County, Texas or the
Contracting Officer, as applicable, and each Participating Entity on the dates indicated below.

See attached signature page(s):
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December 17, 2019

Date

JANUARY 22, 2020

Date

Date

Date

Signature:
Printed name:
Title:

Political Subdivision:

Address:

City, State, Zip:
Telephone:
Fax:

Email:

Signature:
Printed name:
Title:

Political Subdivision:

Address:

City, State, Zip:
Telephone:
Fax:

Email:

Signature:
Printed name:
Title:

Political Subdivision:

Address:

City, State, Zip:
Telephone:
Fax:

Email:

Signature:
Printed name:
Title:

Political Subdivision:

Address:

City, State, Zip:
Telephone:
Fax:

Email:
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Suzie Harvey  \

Contracting Officer

Montgomery County, Texas

All correspondence to be directed to:
Montgomery County Elections Office

P. O. Box 2646

Conroe, Texas 77305-2646

(936) 539-7843

(936) 788-8340

suzie.harvey@mctx.org

M. RITCHEY WHEELER

MAYOR

CITY OF SHENANDOAH

29955 INTERSTATE 45 N.

SHENANDOAH, TX, 77381

( 281 ) 298-5522

(281 ) 367-2255

( )
( )
( )
( )




ELECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS 0
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY ()

THIS CONTRACT is made this 17th day of December, 2019, by and between the Political
Subdivision of CITY OF SHENANDOAH ,

hereinafter called “Political Subdivision,” and Montgomery County, Texas, by its County
Election Officer, Suzie Harvey, hereinafter called “Contracting Officer,” pursuant to Texas
Election Code Section 31.092. The parties agree to hold a May 2, 2020 Joint Election with all
participating Political Subdivisions in accordance with Chapter 271 of the Texas Election Code

and this Agreement. This Agreement is entered into in consideration of the mutual covenants
and promises hereinafter set out:

1.

RECITALS. Contracting Officer is the Elections Administrator of Montgomery County,
Texas, and is the County Officer in charge of election duties. Political Subdivision is a
political entity situated wholly or partially within Montgomery County, Texas. Political
Subdivision and Contracting Officer have determined that it is in the public interest of
Montgomery County voters that the following contract be made and entered into for the
purpose of having Contracting Officer furnish to Political Subdivision certain election
services and equipment needed by Political Subdivision in connection with holding its
May 2, 2020 Election. Montgomery County’s certified Hart InterCivic eSlate Voting System
Version 6.2.1 electronic voting equipment is to be used in the May 2, 2020 Joint Election,
hereinafter called “Joint Election.”

DUTIES AND SERVICES OF CONTRACTING OFFICER. Contracting Officer shall be
responsible for performing the following duties and shall furnish the following services and
equipment:

(a) Determine the number of election officials and voting equipment units needed for each
polling location. Notify and coordinate presiding election judges, alternate judges, and all
other election officials appointed by Montgomery County Commissioners’ Court and the
County FElection Board or recommended by Contracting Officer, as applicable.
Montgomery County or Contracting Officer, as applicable, will make emergency
appointments of election officials if necessary.

(b) Conduct necessary training of election officials or arrange for training through a third
party. Notify all early voting and election day officials of the date, time, and place
thereof.

(c) Arrange for the use of early voting locations per the attached Exhibit A and election day
polling locations per the attached Exhibit B. If the need arises for emergency replacement
polling location(s), make necessary alternate arrangements and notify Political
Subdivision as soon as possible.



(d) Procure election kits and supplies and distribute to the election judges and early voting
deputies. Assemble and edit lists of registered voters to be used in conducting the
election in conformity with the boundaries of Political Subdivision and the election
precincts established for the election. The election day list of registered voters shall be
arranged in alphabetical order, as applicable to the election, in lieu of alphabetical order
by political entity.

(e) Prepare and test all electronic voting equipment, format ballot styles, record audio,
oversee all equipment and voter registration database programming, assure compliance
with equipment security requirements, and arrange for transport of equipment to and
from polling locations.

(f) Serve as Early Voting Clerk for the Joint Election. Process, print, mail, email, or deliver
in person, as applicable, and tabulate ballots for any eligible voter who applies for a mail
ballot including all eligible Federal Post Card Application voters. Supervise the conduct
of early voting in person and appoint sufficient personnel to serve as deputy early voting
clerks. Provide lists of early voters as provided by law through the Montgomery County
Elections Public Information web access program.

(g) Provide the publication in English and Spanish of one legal notice of the date, time, and
place of the public logic and accuracy test and first test of automatic tabulating equipment
in The Conroe Courier. Prepare test materials and conduct internal election testing and
the required public logic and accuracy test and tests of tabulation equipment.

Provide the publication in English and Spanish of a legal notice of joint election one time
in Montgomery County newspaper(s).

(h) Arrange for all personnel, equipment, and supplies needed for the early voting ballot
board, signature verification committee if applicable, tabulation, and central counting
station. Tabulate early voting and election day results, including paper ballots and
provisional ballots. Tabulate unofficial returns and assist in preparing the tabulation for
the official canvass. Provide Political Subdivision its voter history report following the
election through the Montgomery County Elections Public Information web access
program.

(1) Serve as Custodian of Records for election records in Contracting Officer’s custody and
provide the required temporary storage and permanent storage of said election records as
provided by law.

(j) Provide information services for voters and election officers.

(k) Maintain accurate records of all expenses incurred in connection with the responsibilities
under this Agreement and provide Political Subdivision a final invoice after the conduct
of the election. Provide any detailed backup to such invoice, if requested, reflecting the
charges or components of the costs set forth on the invoice submitted to Political
Subdivision.

(I) Conduct a partial manual count as provided by Section 127.201 of the Texas Election
Code if required for the County election or if Political Subdivision provides Contracting
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Officer precincts and races ordered by the Secretary of State to be manually counted.
Contracting Officer shall deliver a written report of the results of any such count to the
Office of the Secretary of State in accordance with Section 127.201(e) of the Texas
Election Code and to Political Subdivision in a timely manner.

(m)Place the funds paid by Political Subdivision hereunder in a "contract fund" as prescribed
by Section 31.100 of the Texas Election Code.

. DUTIES AND SERVICES OF POLITICAL SUBDIVISION. Political Subdivision shall

be responsible for performing the following duties:

(a) Prepare all election orders, resolutions, notices, and other pertinent documents for
adoption and execution by the appropriate Political Subdivision officer or body. Take all
actions necessary for calling Political Subdivision’s election which are required by the
Texas Election Code and/or the Political Subdivision’s governing body, charter,
ordinances, or other applicable laws. Execute a Joint Election Agreement with all
participating Political Subdivisions for the purpose of sharing election equipment,
election officials, polling places, and costs. Serve as Custodian of Records for all
election records in its possession as provided by law.

(b) Political Subdivision shall be responsible for the legal sufficiency of any order calling its
election. Political Subdivision shall be responsible for all substantive and procedural
legal issues governing the conduct of its election. Political Subdivision understands and
agrees that Contracting Officer provides no legal advice to Political Subdivision.

(c) Adopt the County Election Precincts, consolidated County Election Precincts ordered by
the Montgomery County Commissioners’ Court, or precincts recommended by
Contracting Officer, as applicable, for this election. Adopt all early voting dates, times,
and locations on the attached Exhibit A. Adopt the election day polling locations on the
attached Exhibit B at which Political Subdivision’s election will be held.

(d) If required, prepare any necessary preclearance submission on all voting changes made
by Political Subdivision and timely submit to the U. S. Department of Justice under the
Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended.

(e) Prepare, post and publish all required election notices for Political Subdivision with the
exception of the joint election notice and the notice of the public test which Contracting
Officer shall publish. In addition, if polling locations for Joint Election are different than
those for Political Subdivision’s previous election, Political Subdivision shall post notice
at the entrance to any previous polling places in its jurisdiction stating that the polling
location has changed and shall provide the polling location and address for those voters
for this election, pursuant to Texas Election Code Section 43.062, unless Contracting
Officer has posted notice of the change at that location for Joint Election. Educate the
voters in Political Subdivision as much as possible about early voting dates, times, and
locations and election day polling locations.

(f) Timely confirm with Contracting Officer Political Subdivision’s boundaries, County
Election Precincts, and street details within those boundaries. If boundaries are not
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defined properly within Montgomery County Elections voter registration database, maps
and street lists with block ranges and odd/even/both indicators must be provided to
Contracting Officer. Proof and approve all programming work done for the jurisdiction
according to the Exhibit C Timetable.

(g) Deliver to Contracting Officer, according to the attached Exhibit C Timetable, an Entity

Fact Sheet, Ballot Template with Spanish translations, candidate names or measures, and
the order in which all items are to be printed on the ballot with the exact form and
spelling. Provide pronunciation for difficult names or words for use on the ballot audio
recording. Review ballot proofs and approve by signature within deadlines provided.

(h) Appoint Contracting Officer as Early Voting Clerk to receive applications for ballot by

(@)

W)

mail at
Mail Email* Fax*
Suzie Harvey election.ballot@mctx.org (936) 788-8340
Elections Administrator
P. O. Box 2646

Conroe, TX 77305-2646

*If an Application for Ballot By Mail is submitted by email or fax or if a Federal Post
Card Application is submitted by fax, to be effective, the application must also be
submitted by mail and be received not later than the fourth business day after it is
received by email or fax.

All requests for early voting ballots to be voted by mail that are received by Political
Subdivision must be forwarded in person or by email or fax to Contracting Officer on the
day of receipt. Original applications that are received by mail and forwarded by email or
fax must also be mailed to Contracting Officer for all processing.

Appoint election officials as appointed by Montgomery County Commissioners’ Court
and the County Election Board or recommended by Contracting Officer, as applicable.

If requested, assist Contracting Officer with recruiting bilingual poll workers and provide
documentation of Political Subdivision’s efforts if requested by the U. S. Department of
Justice.

(k) If candidate information packet is provided to Political Subdivision by Contracting

M

Officer, distribute to all candidates at time of candidate filing or in another appropriate
manner.

Pay additional costs incurred by Contracting Officer for any recount, election contest,
newly ordered election, or a runoff election, if required, unless prohibited by law.

(m)Immediately forward to Contracting Officer any information received from the Secretary

of State regarding a manual count of precincts and races or a waiver of the manual count.
Contracting Officer must receive this information on the same day received by Political
Subdivision because of the short deadline for Contracting Officer to begin the process.
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(n) Canvass the returns and declare the election results for Political Subdivision. Political
Subdivision is responsible for filing any precinct reports with the Secretary of State if
required, unless both parties agree that Contracting Officer will submit precinct reports.

(o) Pay a deposit of 60% of its estimated cost per the Exhibit D Cost Estimate within thirty
days from the date of Exhibit D Cost Estimate. Pay the balance for conducting said
election within thirty days from the date of final invoice. All payments shall be made
from current revenues available to Political Subdivision. If the amount owed for
conducting the election is less than the deposit paid by Political Subdivision, Contracting
Officer shall refund the overpayment in a prompt manner.

Checks shall be made payable to:

Montgomery County Elections Administrator
P O Box 2646, Conroe, Texas 77305-2646.

4. COST OF SERVICES. Political Subdivision shall share some expenses for the above
services, supplies, and equipment in accordance with the attached Exhibit D Cost Estimate.
This cost estimate may be amended, if necessary, after filing deadlines and election
cancellations. Additional elections may reduce costs for each entity, and election
cancellations may increase costs for each remaining entity. It is understood that other
political entities may wish to participate in the use of the County’s electronic voting
equipment and polling locations, and it is agreed that Contracting Officer may enter into
other contracts with entities for those purposes on terms and conditions generally similar to
those set forth in this Agreement. Only the actual expenses directly attributable to this
Agreement and any prorated shared expenses plus a 10% administrative fee may be charged
to Political Subdivision.

5. GENERAL CONDITIONS.

(a) The parties agree that the timing is critical for all duties in this Agreement. Failure to
adhere to any deadline in the Exhibit C Timetable without prior agreement of Contracting
Officer may result in cancellation of Contracting Officer’s duties and obligations to
conduct Political Subdivision’s election under this Agreement or, at the discretion of
Contracting Officer, a late penalty surcharge in an amount not to exceed 10% of the final
election cost. Adherence to the Timetable is critical because of Montgomery County’s
obligation to complete all programming and testing, process, print, and mail or email, as
applicable, any military and overseas ballots by state and federal deadlines, and conduct
federal, state, county, and/or other contracted elections, as applicable.

(b) In accordance with Section 31.098 of the Texas Election Code, Contracting Officer is
authorized to contract with third persons for election services and supplies and hire
necessary temporary personnel to perform contracted duties. Part-time and seasonal
personnel will be compensated at the hourly rate set by Montgomery County.

(c) Pursuant to Section 31.100(d) of the Texas Election Code, Contracting Officer may not
be personally compensated for election services performed under this Agreement. In
accordance with Section 31.100(e) of the Texas Election Code, only costs for contractual
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duties performed by full-time county employees outside of normal business hours will be
allocated to Political Subdivision under this Agreement.

(d) Political Subdivision acknowledges that electronic voting equipment is highly technical

and it is conceivable that, despite the best effort of the parties and technical assistance, it
might fail during the election. Contracting Officer will take every possible action to
remedy the situation, but Political Subdivision agrees that should such equipment fail, it
will not make any claim for damages of any kind.

(e) The county early voting sites as per the attached Exhibit A will be used for the Joint

®

Election. Any eligible Montgomery County voter in the Joint Election may vote early by
personal appearance at any one of the joint early voting locations in Exhibit A.

Montgomery County Elections Department is contracting with numerous political entities
for the Joint Election, and the parties agree that all ballot styles will be programmed into
one electronic voting system. Each voter will receive one ballot that contains all races
and measures in the Joint Election for which the voter is eligible at the address and in the
precinct of the voter’s current registration in Montgomery County. One joint voter sign-
in process consisting of a common list of Montgomery County registered voters and
common signature rosters shall be used.

(g) In accordance with Section 31.099 of the Texas Election Code, Contracting Officer shall file

copies of this Agreement with the Auditor and Treasurer of Montgomery County not later
than the 10th day from receipt of the fully executed Agreement by Contracting Officer.

(h) Montgomery County is self-insured for personal liability issues. Should Political

(@)

W)

Subdivision desire insurance for injuries during this election or other liabilities, it shall
make such arrangements separate from this Agreement.

In the event that the performance by Contracting Officer of any of its obligations
hereunder shall be interrupted or delayed by any occurrence not occasioned by its own
conduct, whether such occurrence be an act of God or the result of war, riot, civil
commotion, sovereign conduct, or the act or condition of any persons not a party thereof,
then it shall be excused from such performance for such period of time as is reasonably
necessary after such occurrence to remedy the effects thereof.

The parties to this Agreement agree that Political Subdivision may cancel this Agreement
in the event that it has no need to participate in Joint Election. If Political Subdivision
cancels its participation after the deadline in Exhibit C Timetable, a $200 contract
preparation and processing fee will be assessed to Political Subdivision in addition to any
costs incurred by Contracting Officer on behalf of Political Subdivision prior to said
cancellation. A 10% administrative fee will be added to all charges for services provided
under this agreement, including services related to a canceled election or canceled
participation for which notification is provided to Contracting Officer after the deadline
in Exhibit C Timetable.

(k) Political Subdivision has the option of extending the applicable terms of this Agreement

through its runoff election, if required. Political Subdivision shall be responsible for
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locating acceptable runoff polling locations, although Contracting Officer may assist.
Political Subdivision may reduce the number of early voting locations and/or election day
polling locations in a runoff election. If Political Subdivision elects to have Contracting
Officer conduct a runoff election, the date must be acceptable to Contracting Officer and
shall be coordinated with other participating entities. Costs will be allocated to the
participating entities, plus a 10% administrative fee shall be charged. Political
Subdivision shall be responsible for all orders, notices, and notice of election postings
and publications required for its runoff, except the publication of the notice of public
logic and accuracy test which Contracting Officer will publish.

The foregoing Election Services Agreement is made in Montgomery County, Texas, and is
signed on the dates below.

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

December 17, 2019 By: W‘\

Date Signed Suzie Harvey, Elections Administrator
“Contracting Officer”
9159 Airport Road
Conroe, Texas 77303
Phone: (936) 539-7843  Fax: (936) 788-8340
Email: suzie.harvey@mctx.org

CITY OF SHENANDOAH

“Political Subdivision”

JANUARY 22,2020 By:

Date Signed Name: M. RITCHEY WHEELER

Title: MAYOR

Address: 29955 INTERSTATE 45 N

City, State, Zip: SHENANDOAH, TX, 77381

Phone: 281-298-5522 Fax: 281-367-2255

Email: CCLARY@SHENANDOAHTX.US
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EXHIBIT A

Montgomery County

May 2, 2020 Joint El

ection

Early Voting Polling Locations and Times

April 20 - 25 Monday — Saturday 8:00am - 5:00 pm
April 27 — 28 Monday — Tuesday 7:00am - 7:00 pm
Polling Location Address Room
Sitio de Votacion Direccion Sala
Lee G. Alworth Building 207 West Phillips Street |First Floor
(Main Early Voting Polling Place Conroe 77301 Primer Piso
Sitio Principal Electoral de Votacion Adelantada)
West Montgomery County Community Development [31355 Friendship Drive |Green Room
Center Magnolia 77355 Sala Verde

Shenandoah Municipal Complex

29955 |-45 North
Shenandoah 77381

Council Chambers
Salon de Consejo y
Pasillo

North Montgomery County Community Center

600 Gerald Street
Willis 77378

Community Room
102/103

Sala Comunitaria
102/103

East Montgomery County Fair Association Building

21675A McCleskey Road
New Caney 77357

Main Room
Sala Principal

Lone Star Community Center

2500 Lone Star Parkway
Montgomery 77356

Community Room
103/104

Sala Comunitaria
103/104

Limited Ballots, Special Forms of Early Voting and Ballot by
Mail only:

Boletas Limitadas, Formas Especiales de Votacion
Adelantada, y Boleta por Correo solamente:

Election Central

9159 Airport Road
Conroe 77303

Please note that Early Voting polling places are subject to change.

12/17/2019


cclary
Highlight


Montgomery County Elections

EXHIBIT B - Polling Location Information
May 2, 2020 Joint Election

NELE]

For Election Day

Physical Address

City

1 [Willis Community Building 109 West Mink Street Willis, TX 77378
2 |Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 3601 South Loop 336 East Conroe, TX 77301
3 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade 10010 Branch Crossing Drive The Woodlands, TX |77382
Campus
4 |Copperwood Apartment Building 4407 South Panther Creek Drive The Woodlands, TX |77381
5 |Long Street Community Center 20240 Bays Chapel Road Richards, TX 77873
6 |Deretchin Elementary School 11000 Merit Oaks Drive The Woodlands, TX |77382
7 |New Caney Elementary School 20501 FM 1485 New Caney, TX 77357
8 |Browder Community Center 14865 County Line Road Willis, TX 77378
9 |Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 695 South FM 1486 Montgomery, TX 77316
10 |Booker T. Washington Junior High School 507 Dr. Martin L. King, Jr. Place North |(Conroe, TX 77301
11 |[Woodforest Church 15917 Highway 105 West Montgomery, TX 77356
12 |[Security Community Center 18760 Highway 105 East Cleveland, TX 77328
13 |Decker Prairie Community Center 32434 Decker Prairie Road Magnolia, TX 77355
14 |Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 18690 Cumberland Boulevard Porter, TX 77365
15 |Cornerstone Church 100 Mosswood Drive Conroe, TX 77302
16 |Splendora ISD Instructional Services 26175 FM 2090 Splendora, TX 77372
17 |First Baptist Church Groceville 19256 FM 1484 Conroe, TX 77303
18 |Magnolia Community Center 422 Melton Street Magnolia, TX 77354
19 |[City of Montgomery City Hall 101 Old Plantersville Road Montgomery, TX 77316
20 |Travis Intermediate School 1100 North Thompson Street Conroe, TX 77301
21 |Conroe High School 3200 West Davis Street Conroe, TX 77304
22 |Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 13621 Lake Breeze Lane Willis, TX 77318
23 |North Montgomery County Community Center |600 Gerald Street Willis, TX 77378
24 |Oak Ridge High School 27330 Oak Ridge School Road Oak Ridge North, TX |77385
25 |Grangerland Community Center 15636 FM 3083 Grangerland, TX 77302
26 Ea;t _Montgomery County Fair Association 21675A McCleskey Road New Caney, TX 77357
Building
27 |Rivershire Club House 206 Scarborough Drive Conroe, TX 77304
28 |Decker Prairie Elementary School 27427 Decker Prairie Rosehill Road  Magnolia, TX 77355
29 West Montgomery County Community 31355 Friendship Drive Magnolia, TX 77355
Development Center
30 |Magnolia High School 14350 FM 1488 Magnolia, TX 77354
31 |Shenandoah Municipal Complex 29955 [-45 North Shenandoah, TX 77381
32 |W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 12312 Sawmill Road The Woodlands, TX |77386
33 |South County Community Center 2235 Lake Robbins Drive The Woodlands, TX |77380
34 |Needham Fire Department Station 64 15341 Lake Lamond Road Conroe, TX 77384
35 |Robinson Road Community Center 27434 Robinson Road Oak Ridge North, TX [77385
36 |Allendale Baptist Church 14535 Allendale Lane Conroe, TX 77302
37 |Friendship United Methodist Church 22388 Ford Road Porter, TX 77365

Please note that Election Day polling places are subject to change.




38 |Montgomery County West Annex 19380 Highway 105 W., Suite 507 Montgomery, TX 77356
39 |Lake Creek High School 20639 FM 2854 Montgomery, TX 77316
40 |Cryar Intermediate School 2375 Montgomery Park Boulevard Conroe, TX 77304
41 |Splendora ISD Administration Building 23419 FM 2090 Splendora, TX 77372
42 |Moorhead Junior High School 13475 FM 1485 Conroe, TX 77306
43 |Panorama Village City Hall 99 Hiwon Drive Panorama Village, TX 77304
44 |The Lone Star Convention Center 9055 Airport Road Conroe, TX 77303
45 |Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 3434 Royal Oaks Drive Spring, TX 77380
46 |Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 2855 Spring Trails Bend Spring, TX 77386
47 |South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 28830 Birnham Woods Drive Spring, TX 77386
48 |Sally K. Ride Elementary School 4920 West Panther Creek Drive The Woodlands, TX |77381
49 |David Elementary School 5301 Shadowbend Place The Woodlands, TX |77381
50 |Far Hills Utility District Building 10320 Cude Cemetery Road Willis, TX 77318
51 |Central Library 104 1-45 North Conroe, TX 77301
52 |New Caney ISD Annex 22500 Eagle Drive New Caney, TX 77357
53 |Woodbranch City Hall 58 A Woodbranch Drive New Caney, TX 77357
54 |Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined To Be Determined New Caney, TX 77357
55 |Austin Elementary School 14796 Highway 105 East Conroe, TX 77306
56 |The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 16135 IH-45 South The Woodlands, TX |77385
57 |Calvary Road Baptist Church 12621 Calvary Road Willis, TX 77318
58 |Lone Star College System 5000 Research Forest Drive The Woodlands, TX |77381
59 |Powell Elementary School 7332 Cochrans Crossing Drive The Woodlands, TX |77381
60 |Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 200 Academy Drive Conroe, TX 77301
61 |George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 8125 Ashlane Way The Woodlands, TX |77382
62 |Collins Intermediate School 6020 Shadowbend Place The Woodlands, TX |77381
63 |Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined To Be Determined Montgomery, TX 77356
64 |Whispering Pines Baptist Church 15200 FM 1485 Conroe, TX 77306
65 |J. L. Lyon Elementary School 27035 Nichols Sawmill Road Magnolia, TX 77355
66 |Outback Western Wear Event Hall 30405 Dobbin Huffsmith Road Magnolia, TX 77354
67 |Lamar Elementary School 1300 Many Pines Road The Woodlands, TX |77380
68 |Knights of Columbus Hall 29327 South Plum Creek Drive Spring, TX 77386
69 |Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 7420 Crownridge Drive The Woodlands, TX [77382
70 |The Woodlands Recreation Center 5310 Research Forest Drive The Woodlands, TX |77381
71 |Buckalew Elementary School 4909 West Alden Bridge Drive The Woodlands, TX |77382
72 |Bentwater Yacht Club 200 Bentwater Harbor Drive Montgomery, TX 77356
73 |City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center  |401 Sgt. Ed Holcomb Boulevard South [Conroe, TX 77304
74 |Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 28747 Hardin Store Road Magnolia, TX 77354
75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club |1 East Windsor Hills Circle The Woodlands, TX |77384
House
76 |Westwood Landowners' Association Building  |406 Mackintosh Drive Magnolia, TX 77354
77 |April Sound Church 67 1/2 April Wind Drive South Montgomery, TX 77356
78 |Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 9001 Cochrans Crossing Drive The Woodlands, TX |77381
79 |Glen Loch Elementary School 27505 Glen Loch Drive The Woodlands, TX |77381
80 |Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 31120 Imperial Oaks Boulevard Spring, TX 77386
81 |[Mitchell Intermediate School 6800 Alden Bridge Drive The Woodlands, TX |77382
82 |Bens Branch Elementary School 24160 Briar Berry Lane Porter, TX 77365
83 |Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined To Be Determined Cleveland, TX 77328




84 |Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined To Be Determined Spring, TX 77380
85 |Northridge Baptist Church 10681 FM 1484 Conroe, TX 77303
86 |Living Branch Church 13229 Highway 105 West Conroe, TX 77304
87 |Birnham Woods Elementary School 31150 Birnham Woods Drive Spring, TX 77386
88 |C.D. York Junior High School 3515 Waterbend Cove Spring, TX 77386
89 |Bear Branch Elementary School 8909 FM 1488 Magnolia, TX 77354
90 |The Palm Information Center 251 Central Pine Street Montgomery, TX 77316
91 |Magnolia West High School 42202 FM 1774 Magnolia, TX 77355
92 |Kaufman Elementary School 2760 Northridge Forest Dr. Spring, TX 77386
93 |Valley Ranch Elementary School 21700 Valley Ranch Crossing Drive  |Porter, TX 77365
94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts |500 Royston Drive Kingwood, TX 77339
Center
95 |Kings Manor Elementary School 21111 Royal Crossing Drive Kingwood, TX 77339
96 |Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 16780 Needham Road Conroe, TX 77385
97 |Magnolia Event Center 11659 FM 1488 Magnolia, TX 77354
98 |Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined To Be Determined Conroe, TX 77384
99 |Jean Stewart Elementary School 680 Fish Creek Thoroughfare Montgomery, TX 77316
100 |Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined |To Be Determined Spring, TX 77386

joof | | |



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:26 PM

School District

Cleveland Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 3 44 47 *41
| 3 44| 47 1

Conroe Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 211 2,099 2,310 02
*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 355 2,683 3,038 *03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
*06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 *06
*07 New Caney Elementary School 36 439 475 *07
*08 Browder Community Center 77 1,120 1,197 *08
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
*12 Security Community Center 169 1,534 1,703 *12
*14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 24 253 277 *14
15 Cornerstone Church 383 4,039 4,422 15
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
21 Conroe High School 684 3,078 3,762 21
24 Oak Ridge High School 331 2,806 3,137 24
25 Grangerland Community Center 341 3,130 3,471 25
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 3 44 47 *26
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 438 4,101 4,539 31
32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 451 2,375 2,826 32
33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 33
*34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 133 1,824 1,957 *34
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
36 Allendale Baptist Church 381 2,855 3,236 36
*39 Lake Creek High School 1 26 27 *39
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 552 4,443 4,995 *40
42 Moorhead Junior High School 84 813 897 42
*44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,240 2,706 *44
45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 393 2,562 2,955 45
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
55 Austin Elementary School 107 1,166 1,273 55
56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 319 2,855 3,174 56
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:26 PM
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 225 1,879 2,104 60
*61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 *61
62 Collins Intermediate School 257 2,417 2,674 62
*64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 149 1,936 2,085 *64
67 Lamar Elementary School 346 2,421 2,767 67
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 *69
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 735 3,392 4,127 75
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 47 1,096 1,143 *76
*77 April Sound Church 9 47 56 77
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
79 Glen Loch Elementary School 313 1,840 2,153 79
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 410 2,699 3,109 *81
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 1,029 3,428 4,457 84
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 84 1,219 1,303 *85
86 Living Branch Church 223 2,096 2,319 86
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 88
*90 The Palm Information Center 102 1,710 1,812 *90
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92
96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 96
98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 560 4,165 4,725 98
*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 215 3,003 3,218 *99
100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 270 3,226 3,496 100

21,176 170,737 191,913 66

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:26 PM

Magnolia Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 393 2,242 2,635 *03
*06 Deretchin Elementary School 0 *06
*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 2 2 *09
*13 Decker Prairie Community Center 212 2,778 2,990 *13
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
*28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 114 1,046 1,160 *28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29
*30 Magnolia High School 150 2,134 2,284 *30
*34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 22 474 496 *34
*61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 0 *61
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
*66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 161 1,701 1,862 *66
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 0 *69
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 259 2,747 3,006 *76
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 109 830 939 *81
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 381 4,079 4,460 *89
*90 The Palm Information Center 12 78 90 *90
*91 Magnolia West High School 149 1,728 1,877 *01
97 Magnolia Event Center 222 2,946 3,168 97
3,710 38,585 42,295 20

Montgomery Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*05 Long Street Community Center 9 9 *05
*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 142 1,697 1,839 *09
11 Woodforest Church 202 1,757 1,959 11
19 City of Montgomery City Hall 300 3,295 3,595 19
*30 Magnolia High School 11 157 168 *30
38 Montgomery County West Annex 535 4,804 5,339 38
*39 Lake Creek High School 357 4,214 4,571 *39
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 0 *40
63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 596 4,709 5,305 63
72 Bentwater Yacht Club 245 3,629 3,874 72
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 27 374 401 *76
*77 April Sound Church 375 3,741 4,116 *T7
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 7 1 8 *89
*90 The Palm Information Center 209 2,784 2,993 *90
*91 Magnolia West High School 5 86 91 *91
*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 3 87 90 *99
3,014 31,344 34,358 16

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:26 PM

New Caney Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*07 New Caney Elementary School 91 664 755 *07
*14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 291 3,791 4,082 *14
*16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 2 2 *16
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 251 2,088 2,339 *26

37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 37

52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52

*53 Woodbranch City Hall 263 3,626 3,889 *53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54

*64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 6 74 80 *64
82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 82

93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93

94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 307 1,454 1,761 94

95 Kings Manor Elementary School 685 3,397 4,082 95

3,655 30,922 34,577 13

Richards Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*05 Long Street Community Center 13 274 287 *05
13 274 287 1

Splendora Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*07 New Caney Elementary School 70 728 798 *07
*12 Security Community Center 36 534 570 *12
*16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,617 4,012 *16
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 274 3,411 3,685 *41
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 7 54 61 *53
782 8,344 9,126 5

Tomball Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*13 Decker Prairie Community Center 132 1,934 2,066 *13
*28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 162 1,884 2,046 *28
*66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 182 1,921 2,103 *66
476 5,739 6,215 3

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:26 PM

Willis Independent School District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

01 Willis Community Building 225 1,818 2,043 01
*08 Browder Community Center 100 1,605 1,705 *08
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 29 551 580 *40
43 Panorama Village City Hall 344 4,309 4,653 43
*44 The Lone Star Convention Center 14 14 *44
50 Far Hills Utility District Building 280 3,459 3,739 50
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 194 1,870 2,064 *85
2,336 23,632 25,968 10

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B

City

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

City of Cleveland
PCT Polling Location

Suspense

Active

Total

PCT

*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building

| 4| 4| 1
City of Conroe
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*01 Willis Community Building 82 669 751 *01
*02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 208 2,090 2,298 *02
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
*11 Woodforest Church 124 1,078 1,202 *11
*15 Cornerstone Church 75 1,357 1,432 *15
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
*21 Conroe High School 683 3,066 3,749 *21
*25 Grangerland Community Center 2 2 *25
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
*34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 0 *34
*38 Montgomery County West Annex 14 108 122 *38
*39 Lake Creek High School 4 4 *39
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 536 4,524 5,060 *40
*43 Panorama Village City Hall 195 2,516 2,711 *43
*44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,252 2,718 *44
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 25 303 328 *50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 6 22 28 *56
*60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 194 1,502 1,696 *60
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 417 2,037 2,454 *75
77 April Sound Church 384 3,788 4172 77
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 3 3 *85
*86 Living Branch Church 115 983 1,098 *86
*90 The Palm Information Center 1 4 5 *90
*96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 0 *96
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 185 675 860 *08
5405  38,556] 43,961 27
City of Cut and Shoot
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*17 First Baptist Church Groceville 35 635 670 *17
*55 Austin Elementary School 12 83 95 *55
*60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 7 7 *60
47 725 772 3

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct




Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

City of Houston

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 0 *32
*35 Robinson Road Community Center 14 111 125 *35
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 0 *37
*46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 0 *46
*47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 7 7 *47
*67 Lamar Elementary School 1 3 4 *67
*68 Knights of Columbus Hall 1 4 5 *68
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 0 *82
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 59 231 290 *84
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 0 *88
*94 |Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 244 847 1,091 *94
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 342 919 1,261 *95

661  2,122] 2,783 12
City of Magnolia

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*18 Magnolia Community Center 150 1,189 1,339 *18
*29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 5 79 84 *29
*30 Magnolia High School 0 *30
*91 Magnolia West High School 2 9 11 *01

157| 1,277) 1,434 4
City of Montgomery

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 0 *09
*19 City of Montgomery City Hall 67 529 596 *19
*38 Montgomery County West Annex 24 421 445 *38
*39 Lake Creek High School 12 64 76 *39

103 1,014 1,117 4

City of Oak Ridge North
PCT Polling Location

Suspense

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct

*24 Oak Ridge High School 0 *24
*35 Robinson Road Community Center 161 2,241 2,402 *35
*80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 0 *80

161 2,241 2,402 3




Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

City of Panorama Village

PCT Polling Location

Suspense

Active

Total

PCT

*43 Panorama Village City Hall 148 1,755 1,903 *43
148] 1,755  1,903] 1
City of Patton Village
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 116 643 759 *16
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 7 54 61 *53
123 697 820 2

City of Roman Forest

PCT Polling Location

Active

Total

PCT

Suspense

*53 Woodbranch City Hall 92 1,224 1,316 *53
92| 1,224  1,316] 1
City of Shenandoah
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*24 Oak Ridge High School 79 279 358 *24
*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 174 1,982 2,156 *31
*33 South County Community Center 0 *33
*62 Collins Intermediate School 0 *62
253  2,261] 2,514 4
City of Splendora
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 77 745 822 *16
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 15 190 205 *41
92| 935 1,027 2
City of Stagecoach
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*13 Decker Prairie Community Center 23 320 343 *13
*28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 3 74 77 *28
26| 394| 420] 2

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct




Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
City of Willis
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*01 Willis Community Building 119 829 948 *01
*22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 122 456 578 *22
*23 North Montgomery County Community Center 111 877 988 *23
*43 Panorama Village City Hall 1 1 *43
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 7 33 40 *50
*57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 0 *57
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 81 81 *85

359 2,277 2,636 7

City of Woodbranch Village

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 70 851 921 *53
70 851 921 1

Town of Woodloch

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 23 84 107 *96
23 84 107 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
Emergency Services District
Montgomery County ESD 1
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT

*01 Willis Community Building 143 1,149 1,292 *01
08 Browder Community Center 177 2,725 2,902 08
*12 Security Community Center 165 1,578 1,743 *12
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
*21 Conroe High School 1 12 13 *21
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
*25 Grangerland Community Center 1 1 *25
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 45 470 515 *40
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 1 1 *41
*43 Panorama Village City Hall 149 1,793 1,942 *43
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 255 3,156 3,411 *50
*55 Austin Elementary School 58 668 726 *55
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
*60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 24 300 324 *60
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 278 3,086 3,364 *85
2,831 29,689 32,520 17

Emergency Services District 02

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

05 Long Street Community Center 13 283 296 05
*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 142 1,697 1,839 *09
19 City of Montgomery City Hall 300 3,295 3,595 19
*30 Magnolia High School 11 157 168 *30
*38 Montgomery County West Annex 529 4,756 5,285 *38
*39 Lake Creek High School 163 1,596 1,759 *39
63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 596 4,709 5,305 63
72 Bentwater Yacht Club 245 3,629 3,874 72
*91 Magnolia West High School 5 85 90 *91
2,004 20,207| 22,211 9

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Emergency Services District 03

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*11 Woodforest Church 78 679 757 *11
*39 Lake Creek High School 195 2,640 2,835 *39
*86 Living Branch Church 108 1,113 1,221 *86
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 7 1 8 *89
*90 The Palm Information Center 322 4,568 4,890 *90
99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 218 3,090 3,308 99

| 928  12,091] 13,019 6

Emergency Services District 04

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*24 Oak Ridge High School 133 818 951 *24
*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 157 1,923 2,080 *31
*34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 133 1,824 1,957 *34
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 48 415 463 *56
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 3 94 97 *75
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 47 1,096 1,143 *76
*96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 *96
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 226 2,058 2,284 *08

| 1,321] 12,930] 14,251 8

Emergency Services District 06

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT

14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 315 4,044 4,359 14
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 19 376 395 *26
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 *37
*52 New Caney ISD Annex 289 2,575 2,864 *52
*64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 8 154 162 *64
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 *82
93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93
*94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 63 607 670 *94
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 343 2,478 2,821 *95
2,225 21,148 23,373 9

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Emergency Services District 07

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

07 New Caney Elementary School 197 1,831 2,028 07
*12 Security Community Center 14 313 327 *12
*16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 373 3,294 3,667 *16
*25 Grangerland Community Center 5 24 29 *25
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 235 1,756 1,991 *26
*36 Allendale Baptist Church 38 276 314 *36
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 269 3,314 3,583 *41
*42 Moorhead Junior High School 41 387 428 *42
*52 New Caney ISD Annex 105 729 834 *52
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
*64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 141 1,780 1,921 *64
1,867 18,992| 20,859 12

Emergency Services District 08

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*24 Oak Ridge High School 198 1,988 2,186 *24
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 4 14 18 *32
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47
*67 Lamar Elementary School 4 19 23 *67
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 544 1,557 2,101 *84
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 *88
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92
100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 270 3,226 3,496 100
4,625 38,587 43,212 13

Emergency Services District 09

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 3 9 12 *02
*12 Security Community Center 26 177 203 *12
*15 Cornerstone Church 308 2,682 2,990 *15
*25 Grangerland Community Center 336 3,103 3,439 *25
*36 Allendale Baptist Church 343 2,579 2,922 *36
*42 Moorhead Junior High School 43 426 469 *42
*55 Austin Elementary School 49 498 547 *55
*64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 6 76 82 *64

1,114 9,550 10,664 8

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct




Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
Emergency Services District 10
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT

*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 238 1,031 1,269 *03
*06 Deretchin Elementary School 0 *06
*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 2 2 *09
13 Decker Prairie Community Center 344 4,712 5,056 13
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 276 2,930 3,206 28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29
*30 Magnolia High School 150 2,134 2,284 *30
*34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 22 474 496 *34
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 343 3,622 3,965 66
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 0 *69
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 286 3,121 3,407 *76
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 109 830 939 *81
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 381 4,079 4,460 *89
*91 Magnolia West High School 149 1,729 1,878 *01
97 Magnolia Event Center 222 2,946 3,168 97
4,046 43,410 47,456 18

Emergency Services District 14

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 9 117 126 *32
*45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 305 1,554 1,859 *45
*79 Glen Loch Elementary School 34 139 173 *79
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 237 567 804 *84
585 2,377 2,962 4

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
Improvement District

East Montgomery County Improvement District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*07 New Caney Elementary School 161 1,392 1,553 *07
*12 Security Community Center 36 534 570 *12
*14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 291 3,791 4,082 *14
16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,619 4,014 16
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 251 2,088 2,339 *26
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 *37
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 274 3,411 3,685 *41
52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
*64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 6 74 80 *64
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 *82
93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93
*94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 63 607 670 *94
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 343 2,478 2,821 *95
3,851 37,500 41,351 15

Lazy River Improvement District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 46 337 383 *56
| 46| 337 383 1

Montgomery County Water Control and Improvement District No. 04

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*18 Magnolia Community Center 1 1 *18
| | 1 1 1

Shenandoah Municipal Development District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*24 Oak Ridge High School 116 560 676 *24
*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 180 2,191 2,371 *31
*33 South County Community Center 0 *33
*62 Collins Intermediate School 87 303 390 *62
383 3,054 3,437 4

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

The Woodlands Township

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 510 3,894 4,404 *03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
*06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 *06
*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 245 1,700 1,945 *31
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 438 2,244 2,682 *32
*33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 *33
*45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 88 1,008 1,096 *45
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 265 2,418 2,683 *56
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
*62 Collins Intermediate School 170 2,114 2,284 *62
*67 Lamar Elementary School 342 2,402 2,744 *67
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 *69
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
*74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 1 1 *74
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 315 1,261 1,576 *75
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
*79 Glen Loch Elementary School 279 1,701 1,980 *79
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 410 2,699 3,109 *81
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 248 1,304 1,552 *84
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 149 1,432 1,581 *08
7,476 59,054 66,530 25

Westwood Magnolia Parkway Improvement District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 3 7 10 *76
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 81 147 228 *81
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 4 24 28 *89

88 178 266 3

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
College District
Lone Star College System
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
01 Willis Community Building 225 1,818 2,043 01
02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 211 2,099 2,310 02
03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 748 4,925 5,673 03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 06
07 New Caney Elementary School 197 1,831 2,028 07
08 Browder Community Center 177 2,725 2,902 08
*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 2 2 *09
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
12 Security Community Center 205 2,068 2,273 12
13 Decker Prairie Community Center 344 4,712 5,056 13
14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 315 4,044 4,359 14
15 Cornerstone Church 383 4,039 4,422 15
16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,619 4,014 16
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
21 Conroe High School 684 3,078 3,762 21
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
24 Oak Ridge High School 331 2,806 3,137 24
25 Grangerland Community Center 341 3,130 3,471 25
26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 254 2,132 2,386 26
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 276 2,930 3,206 28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29
*30 Magnolia High School 150 2,134 2,284 *30
31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 438 4,101 4,539 31
32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 451 2,375 2,826 32
33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 33
34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 155 2,298 2,453 34
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
36 Allendale Baptist Church 381 2,855 3,236 36
37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 37
*39 Lake Creek High School 1 26 27 *39
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 581 4,994 5,575 *40
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 274 3,411 3,685 *41
42 Moorhead Junior High School 84 813 897 42
43 Panorama Village City Hall 344 4,309 4,653 43
44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,254 2,720 44
45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 393 2,562 2,955 45
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
50 Far Hills Utility District Building 280 3,459 3,739 50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
55 Austin Elementary School 107 1,166 1,273 55
56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 319 2,855 3,174 56
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 225 1,879 2,104 60
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
62 Collins Intermediate School 257 2,417 2,674 62
64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 155 2,010 2,165 64
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 343 3,622 3,965 66
67 Lamar Elementary School 346 2,421 2,767 67
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 69
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74
75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 735 3,392 4,127 75
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 306 3,843 4,149 *76
*77 April Sound Church 9 47 56 77
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
79 Glen Loch Elementary School 313 1,840 2,153 79
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
81 Mitchell Intermediate School 519 3,529 4,048 81
82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 82
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 1,029 3,428 4,457 84
85 Northridge Baptist Church 278 3,089 3,367 85
86 Living Branch Church 223 2,096 2,319 86
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 88
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 381 4,079 4,460 *89
*90 The Palm Information Center 114 1,788 1,902 *90
*91 Magnolia West High School 149 1,729 1,878 *01
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92
93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93
94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 307 1,454 1,761 94
95 Kings Manor Elementary School 685 3,397 4,082 95
96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 96

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

97 Magnolia Event Center

222 2,946 3,168 97

98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined

560 4,165 4,725 98

*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School

215 3,003 3,218 *99

100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined

270 3,226 3,496 100

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct

32,135 277,960 310,095 94




Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
Municipal Utility District

Blaketree Municipal Utility District No. 01

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 9 9 *09
*91 Magnolia West High School 1 9 10 *91
1 18 19 2

Chateau Woods Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*24 Oak Ridge High School 106 978 1,084 *24
*35 Robinson Road Community Center 1 1 *35
106 979 1,085 2

Clovercreek Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 28 414 442 *29
28 414 442 1

Conroe Municipal Utility District No. 01

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 14 243 257 *02
*25 Grangerland Community Center 2 2 *25
14 245 259 2

Corinthian Point Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 38 458 496 *57
| 38 458 496 1

East Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 01

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 25 210 235 *53
| 25 210 235 1

East Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 03

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total

*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 2 44 46 *26

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
| 2 44 46 1

East Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 04

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*07 New Caney Elementary School 5 19 24 *07
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 1 1 2 *41
| 6 20 26 2

East Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 06

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 44 890 934 *53
| 44 890 934 1

East Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 07

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 45 45 *53
| 45 45 1

East Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 12

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 2 2 *41
| 2 2 1

East Plantation Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*15 Cornerstone Church 107 1,086 1,193 *15
107 1,086 1,193 1

Far Hills Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 47 751 798 *50
47 751 798 1

Grand Oaks Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total

*29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 116 491 607 *29

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
| 116 491 607 1

Harris-Montgomery Counties Municipal Utility District 386

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 154 1,137 1,291 *03
| 154 1,137 1,291 1

Kings Manor Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 220 1,332 1,552 *95
220 1,332 1,552 1

Lake Conroe Hills Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 127 765 892 *22
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 12 98 110 *50
139 863 1,002 2

Magnolia East Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*18 Magnolia Community Center 1 1 *18
| 1 1 1

Montgomery County Fresh Water Supply District No. 06

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 14 213 227 *50
| 14 213 227 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 006

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 407 2,065 2,472 *32
*33 South County Community Center 40 413 453 *33
*67 Lamar Elementary School 45 369 414 *67
492 2,847 3,339 3

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 007

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*04 Copperwood Apartment Building 204 1,006 1,210 *04
*48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 5 170 175 *48
*59 Powell Elementary School 24 212 236 *59
*61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 22 276 298 *61
*62 Collins Intermediate School 40 478 518 *62
*70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 207 1,978 2,185 *70
*79 Glen Loch Elementary School 279 1,701 1,980 *79

781 5,821 6,602 7

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 008

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 278 2,423 2,701 *63
278 2,423 2,701 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 009

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*38 Montgomery County West Annex 40 458 498 *38
*63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 318 2,281 2,599 *63
358 2,739 3,097 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 015

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 0 *56
*96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 341 3,017 3,358 *96
341 3,017 3,358 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 016

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 38 333 371 *16
38 333 371 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 018

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*72 Bentwater Yacht Club 236 3,556 3,792 *72
236 3,556 3,792 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 019

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 251 675 926 *84
251 675 926 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 024

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*52 New Caney ISD Annex 40 371 411 *52
40 371 411 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 036

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*33 South County Community Center 98 972 1,070 *33
*67 Lamar Elementary School 297 2,033 2,330 *67
395 3,005 3,400 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 039

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 265 2,418 2,683 *56
265 2,418 2,683 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 042
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 44 470 514 *40
44 470 514 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 046

PCT Polling Location Suspense

*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 356 2,757 3,113 *03
*06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 *06
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 30 165 195 *32
*45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 35 442 477 *45
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 112 694 806 *69
*78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 317 2,606 2,923 *78
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 133 1,060 1,193 *84
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 149 1,432 1,581 *08

1,564 12,573 14,137 8

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 047

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*49 David Elementary School 182 1,366 1,548 *49
*58 Lone Star College System 155 2,002 2,157 *58
*62 Collins Intermediate School 14 169 183 *62
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 316 2,849 3,165 *69
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 410 2,699 3,109 *81
1,457 13,144 14,601 6

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 056

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 54 521 575 *14
54 521 575 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 060

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 69 600 669 *31
*33 South County Community Center 118 572 690 *33
*49 David Elementary School 90 691 781 *49
*58 Lone Star College System 10 225 235 *58
*61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 357 4,001 4,358 *61
*78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 117 1,223 1,340 *78

761 7,312 8,073 6

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 067

PCT Polling Location Suspense

*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 92 886 978 *31
*33 South County Community Center 7 88 95 *33
*59 Powell Elementary School 91 1,307 1,398 *59
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 27 226 253 *69
*70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 37 530 567 *70
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 136 987 1,123 *75
*78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 51 612 663 *78

441 4,636 5,077 7

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 083

PCT Polling Location Suspense Total
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 108 1,294 1,402 *82
108 1,294 1,402 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 084

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 147 1,456 1,603 *82
147 1,456 1,603 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 088

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 10 276 286 *88
*92 Kaufman Elementary School 110 712 822 *92
120 988 1,108 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 089

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 18 114 132 *47
*92 Kaufman Elementary School 325 2,446 2,771 *92
343 2,560 2,903 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 090

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*27 Rivershire Club House 101 1,071 1,172 *27
101 1,071 1,172 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 092

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 68 415 483 *02
*60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 29 255 284 *60
97 670 767 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 094

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 349 2,820 3,169 *46
349 2,820 3,169 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 095

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 113 847 960 *96
113 847 960 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 096

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 2 186 188 *82
2 186 188 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 098

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 123 1,109 1,232 *95
123 1,109 1,232 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 105

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 6 229 235 *88
*100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 6 375 381 *100
12 604 616 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 106

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*36 Allendale Baptist Church

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 107

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 103 1,397 1,500 *40
103 1,397 1,500 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 108

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*18 Magnolia Community Center 2 2 *18
2 2 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 111

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*36 Allendale Baptist Church 2 2 *36
2 2 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 112

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 17 202 219 *34
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 224 2,049 2,273 *08
241 2,251 2,492 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 113

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*86 Living Branch Church 0 *86
*90 The Palm Information Center 195 3,167 3,362 *90
*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 144 1,590 1,734 *99
339 4,757 5,096 3

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 115

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 203 2,171 2,374 *87
203 2171 2,374 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 121

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*90 The Palm Information Center 5 5 *90

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 126

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*43 Panorama Village City Hall 10 413 423 *43
10 413 423 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 127

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 21 567 588 *87
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 0 *88
*92 Kaufman Elementary School 0 *92
*100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 11 11 *100
21 578 599 4

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 128A

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*43 Panorama Village City Hall 1 54 55 *43
1 54 55 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 130

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*18 Magnolia Community Center

Active

0 *18

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 131

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*18 Magnolia Community Center 1 1 *18
1 1 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 132

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 8 238 246 *40
*73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 3 140 143 *73
1 378 389 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 137

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 5 197 202 *03
5 197 202 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 138

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 2 118 120 *75
2 118 120 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 139

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 12 474 486 *76
12 474 486 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 141

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 5 179 184 *89
5 179 184 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 142

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*86 Living Branch Church 152 152 *86
152 152 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 145

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*17 First Baptist Church Groceville 0 *17

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 148

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 3 202 205 *02
3 202 205 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 149

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*86 Living Branch Church 2 2 *86
2 2 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 150

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*39 Lake Creek High School 1 1 *39
1 1 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 151

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 1 2 3 *22
1 2 3 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 152

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*88 C.D. York Junior High School 0 *88

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 157

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*36 Allendale Baptist Church 0 *36

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 158

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*36 Allendale Baptist Church 2 2 *36
*64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 0 *64
2 2 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 164

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*25 Grangerland Community Center 1 1 *25
1 1 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 165

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*30 Magnolia High School 3 3 *30
3 3 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 166

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*39 Lake Creek High School 2 2 *39
2 2 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 173

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 1 1 *57
1 1 1

Montgomery County Utility District 002

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 91 1,240 1,331 *50
91 1,240 1,331 1

Montgomery County Utility District 003

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*11 Woodforest Church 1 1 2 *11
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 9 9 *40
*77 April Sound Church 151 1,432 1,583 77
152 1,442 1,594 3

Montgomery County Utility District 004

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*11 Woodforest Church 0 *11
*38 Montgomery County West Annex 5 44 49 *38
*77 April Sound Church 211 2,141 2,352 77
216 2,185 2,401 3

New Caney Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*07 New Caney Elementary School 40 202 242 *07
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 219 1,583 1,802 *26
*52 New Caney ISD Annex 200 1,802 2,002 *52
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 29 353 382 *53
*54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 57 354 411 *54
545 4,294 4,839 5

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Point Aquarius Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 139 1,561 1,700 *22
139 1,561 1,700 1

Porter Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 268 1,764 2,032 *37
*52 New Caney ISD Annex 84 728 812 *52
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 175 1,372 1,547 *82
*93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 78 559 637 *93
605 4,423 5,028 4

Rayford Road Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*68 Knights of Columbus Hall
*80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 302 3,217 3,519 *80
*92 Kaufman Elementary School 111 821 932 *92
670 6,521 7,191 3

River Plantation Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*15 Cornerstone Church 194 1,462 1,656 *15
194 1,462 1,656 1

Roman Forest Consolidated Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 92 1,204 1,296 *53
| 92|  1,204]  1,296] 1

Southern Montgomery County MUD

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 0 *32
*35 Robinson Road Community Center 457 2,605 3,062 *35
*67 Lamar Elementary School 4 19 23 *67
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 350 897 1,247 *84

811 3,521 4,332 4

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Spring Creek Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 504 3,621 4,125 *47
*68 Knights of Columbus Hall 105 868 973 *68
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 108 590 698 *88
*92 Kaufman Elementary School 0 *92
717 5,079 5,796 4

Stanley Lake Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*38 Montgomery County West Annex 189 1,649 1,838 *38
*39 Lake Creek High School 6 107 113 *39
195 1,756 1,951 2

Texas National Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 42 398 440 *85
42 398 440 1

The Woodlands Metro Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 1 1 *31
*33 South County Community Center 143 356 499 *33
*62 Collins Intermediate School 1 22 23 *62
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 0 *75
144 379 523 4

The Woodlands Municipal Utility District 01

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*04 Copperwood Apartment Building 111 670 781 *04
*45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 52 494 546 *45
*48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 189 2,023 2,212 *48
*62 Collins Intermediate School 115 1,445 1,560 *62
467 4,632 5,099 4

Trinity Lakes Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 1 1 *85
1 1 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM

Valley Ranch MUD 01

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 168 1,249 1,417 *93
| 168]  1,249]  1,417] 1

Water Control and Improvement District # 01

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 5 41 46 *32
*45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 306 1,612 1,918 *45
*79 Glen Loch Elementary School 34 139 173 *79
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 70 139 209 *84

415 1,931 2,346 4

Woodridge Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 25 599 624 *37
25 599 624 1

Woodtrace Municipal Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*13 Decker Prairie Community Center 17 569 586 *13
17 569 586 1

Woodtrace Municipal Utility District No. 03

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 2 2 *66
2 2 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
Hospital District
Montgomery County Hospital District
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
01 Willis Community Building 225 1,818 2,043 01
02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 211 2,099 2,310 02
03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 748 4,925 5,673 03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
05 Long Street Community Center 13 283 296 05
06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 06
07 New Caney Elementary School 197 1,831 2,028 07
08 Browder Community Center 177 2,725 2,902 08
09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 142 1,699 1,841 09
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
11 Woodforest Church 202 1,757 1,959 11
12 Security Community Center 205 2,068 2,273 12
13 Decker Prairie Community Center 344 4,712 5,056 13
14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 315 4,044 4,359 14
15 Cornerstone Church 383 4,039 4,422 15
16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,619 4,014 16
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
19 City of Montgomery City Hall 300 3,295 3,595 19
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
21 Conroe High School 684 3,078 3,762 21
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
24 Oak Ridge High School 331 2,806 3,137 24
25 Grangerland Community Center 341 3,130 3,471 25
26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 254 2,132 2,386 26
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 276 2,930 3,206 28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29
30 Magnolia High School 161 2,291 2,452 30
31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 438 4,101 4,539 31
32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 451 2,375 2,826 32
33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 33
34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 155 2,298 2,453 34
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
36 Allendale Baptist Church 381 2,855 3,236 36
37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 37
38 Montgomery County West Annex 535 4,804 5,339 38
39 Lake Creek High School 358 4,240 4,598 39
40 Cryar Intermediate School 581 4,994 5,575 40
41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 277 3,455 3,732 41
42 Moorhead Junior High School 84 813 897 42
43 Panorama Village City Hall 344 4,309 4,653 43

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,254 2,720 44
45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 393 2,562 2,955 45
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
50 Far Hills Utility District Building 280 3,459 3,739 50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
55 Austin Elementary School 107 1,166 1,273 55
56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 319 2,855 3,174 56
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 225 1,879 2,104 60
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
62 Collins Intermediate School 257 2,417 2,674 62
63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 596 4,709 5,305 63
64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 155 2,010 2,165 64
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 343 3,622 3,965 66
67 Lamar Elementary School 346 2,421 2,767 67
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 69
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
72 Bentwater Yacht Club 245 3,629 3,874 72
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74
75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 735 3,392 4,127 75
76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 333 4,217 4,550 76
77 April Sound Church 384 3,788 4172 77
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
79 Glen Loch Elementary School 313 1,840 2,153 79
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
81 Mitchell Intermediate School 519 3,529 4,048 81
82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 82
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 1,029 3,428 4,457 84
85 Northridge Baptist Church 278 3,089 3,367 85
86 Living Branch Church 223 2,096 2,319 86
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 88
89 Bear Branch Elementary School 388 4,080 4,468 89
90 The Palm Information Center 323 4,572 4,895 90

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:27 PM
91 Magnolia West High School 154 1,814 1,968 91
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92
93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93
94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 307 1,454 1,761 94
95 Kings Manor Elementary School 685 3,397 4,082 95
96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 96
97 Magnolia Event Center 222 2,946 3,168 97
98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 560 4,165 4,725 98
99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 218 3,090 3,308 99
100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 270 3,226 3,496 100

35,165 309,621 344,786 100

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
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Special Utility District

HMW Special Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*13 Decker Prairie Community Center 150 1,696 1,846 *13
*18 Magnolia Community Center 20 212 232 *18
*28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 142 1,564 1,706 *28
*29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 2 109 111 *29
*65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 55 565 620 *65
*66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 57 648 705 *66
*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 26 339 365 *89

452 5133 5,585 7

Porter Special Utility District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 144 1,561 1,705 *14
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 42 42 *26
*36 Allendale Baptist Church 5 171 176 *36
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 297 2,394 2,691 *37
*52 New Caney ISD Annex 128 979 1,107 *52
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 227 1,858 2,085 *82
*93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 381 3,050 3,431 *93
*94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 32 432 464 *94

1,214 10,487 11,701 8

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct
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Public Utility District

Roman Forest Public Utility District No. 3

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 19 19 *53
19 19 1

Roman Forest Public Utility District No. 4

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*53 Woodbranch City Hall 2 16 18 *53
2 16 18 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct
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Road Utility District

The Woodlands Road Utility District No. 1
PCT Polling Location Suspense

Active

*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus

*03

*04 Copperwood Apartment Building 1 1 *04
*06 Deretchin Elementary School 0 *06
*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 1 1 *31
*33 South County Community Center 4 12 16 *33
*48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 1 1 *48
*58 Lone Star College System 0 *58
*59 Powell Elementary School 0 *59
*61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 0 *61
*62 Collins Intermediate School 1 22 23 *62
*67 Lamar Elementary School 0 *67
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 0 *69
*70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 0 *70
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 0 *75
*78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 9 9 *78
*79 Glen Loch Elementary School 0 *79
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 3 3 *81

6 48 54 17

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct
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Transit Authority

Metropolitan Transit Authority of Harris County

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 0 *37
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 0 *82
*94 |Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 244 847 1,091 *94
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 342 919 1,261 *95

586 1,766 2,352 4

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct
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Single Member City

City of Houston District B ~ Limited Purpose Annexation

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 0 *32
*35 Robinson Road Community Center 14 111 125 *35
*46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 0 *46
*47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 7 7 *47
*67 Lamar Elementary School 1 3 4 *67
*68 Knights of Columbus Hall 1 4 5 *68
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 59 231 290 *84
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 0 *88

75 356 431 8

City of Houston District E

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*37 Friendship United Methodist Church 0 *37
*82 Bens Branch Elementary School 0 *82
*94 |Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 244 847 1,091 *94
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 342 919 1,261 *95
586 1,766 2,352 4

City of Houston District E ~ Limited Purpose Annexation

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*88 C.D. York Junior High School 0 *88
*95 Kings Manor Elementary School 0 *95
0 2

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct
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Improvement District Zones

Conroe Municipal Management District No. 1

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*15 Cornerstone Church 14 435 449 *15
*27 Rivershire Club House 1 3 4 *27

15 438 453 2

Conroe Municipal Management District No. 2

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*01 Willis Community Building 0 *01
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 3 3 *85

| | 3| 3 2

East Montgomery County Improvement District Economic Development Zone 3

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*07 New Caney Elementary School 5 19 24 *07
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 2 2 *41

| 7| 19] 26| 2

East Montgomery County Improvement District Economic Development Zone 4

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 2 2 *41
| | 2| 2 1

New Caney Municipal Utility District Defined Area

PCT Polling Location Suspense
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 0 *26
*52 New Caney ISD Annex 1 1 *52
1 1 2

Valley Ranch Town Center Management District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 13 13 *26
13 13 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
Single Member Hospital District

Montgomery County Hospital District Precinct 1

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
01 Willis Community Building 225 1,818 2,043 01
05 Long Street Community Center 13 283 296 05
08 Browder Community Center 177 2,725 2,902 08
09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 142 1,699 1,841 09
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
19 City of Montgomery City Hall 300 3,295 3,595 19
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
21 Conroe High School 684 3,078 3,762 21
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
38 Montgomery County West Annex 535 4,804 5,339 38
40 Cryar Intermediate School 581 4,994 5,575 40
43 Panorama Village City Hall 344 4,309 4,653 43
44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,254 2,720 44
50 Far Hills Utility District Building 280 3,459 3,739 50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 225 1,879 2,104 60
63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 596 4,709 5,305 63
72 Bentwater Yacht Club 245 3,629 3,874 72
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
77 April Sound Church 384 3,788 4172 77
85 Northridge Baptist Church 278 3,089 3,367 85

8,334 71,391 79,725 24

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Montgomery County Hospital District Precinct 2

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
11 Woodforest Church 202 1,757 1,959 11
13 Decker Prairie Community Center 344 4,712 5,056 13
15 Cornerstone Church 383 4,039 4,422 15
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 276 2,930 3,206 28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29
30 Magnolia High School 161 2,291 2,452 30
31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 438 4,101 4,539 31
34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 155 2,298 2,453 34
39 Lake Creek High School 358 4,240 4,598 39
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 343 3,622 3,965 66
69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 69
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74
75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 735 3,392 4127 75
76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 333 4,217 4,550 76
81 Mitchell Intermediate School 519 3,529 4,048 81
86 Living Branch Church 223 2,096 2,319 86
89 Bear Branch Elementary School 388 4,080 4,468 89
90 The Palm Information Center 323 4,572 4,895 90
91 Magnolia West High School 154 1,814 1,968 91
97 Magnolia Event Center 222 2,946 3,168 97
98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 560 4,165 4,725 98
99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 218 3,090 3,308 99

8,696 87,519 96,215 25

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Montgomery County Hospital District Precinct 3

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 748 4,925 5,673 03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 06
32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 451 2,375 2,826 32
33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 33
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 393 2,562 2,955 45
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
62 Collins Intermediate School 257 2,417 2,674 62
67 Lamar Elementary School 346 2,421 2,767 67
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
79 Glen Loch Elementary School 313 1,840 2,153 79
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 1,029 3,428 4,457 84
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 88
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92

100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 270 3,226 3,496 100
10,594 82,025 92,619 26

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Montgomery County Hospital District Precinct 4

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 211 2,099 2,310 02
07 New Caney Elementary School 197 1,831 2,028 07
12 Security Community Center 205 2,068 2,273 12
14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 315 4,044 4,359 14
16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,619 4,014 16
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
24 Oak Ridge High School 331 2,806 3,137 24
25 Grangerland Community Center 341 3,130 3,471 25
26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 254 2,132 2,386 26
36 Allendale Baptist Church 381 2,855 3,236 36
37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 37
41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 277 3,455 3,732 41
42 Moorhead Junior High School 84 813 897 42
52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
55 Austin Elementary School 107 1,166 1,273 55
56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 319 2,855 3,174 56
64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 155 2,010 2,165 64
82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 82
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93
94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 307 1,454 1,761 94
95 Kings Manor Elementary School 685 3,397 4,082 95
96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 96

7,541 68,686 76,227 25

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Single Member College

Lone Star College District 5

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 748 4,925 5,673 03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 06

*09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 2 2 *09
13 Decker Prairie Community Center 344 4,712 5,056 13
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 276 2,930 3,206 28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29

*30 Magnolia High School 150 2,134 2,284 *30
31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 438 4,101 4,539 31
32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 451 2,375 2,826 32
33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 33
45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 393 2,562 2,955 45
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
62 Collins Intermediate School 257 2,417 2,674 62
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 343 3,622 3,965 66
67 Lamar Elementary School 346 2,421 2,767 67
69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 69
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74

*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 315 1,261 1,576 *75

*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 0 *76
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
79 Glen Loch Elementary School 313 1,840 2,153 79

*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 410 2,890 3,300 *81
84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 1,029 3,428 4,457 84

*89 Bear Branch Elementary School 381 4,079 4,460 *89

*90 The Palm Information Center 12 78 90 *90

*91 Magnolia West High School 149 1,729 1,878 *91
97 Magnolia Event Center 222 2,946 3,168 97

*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 149 1,432 1,581 *98

12,269| 102,560 114,829 37

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct




Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
Lone Star College District 7
PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
01 Willis Community Building 225 1,818 2,043 01
02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 211 2,099 2,310 02
07 New Caney Elementary School 197 1,831 2,028 07
08 Browder Community Center 177 2,725 2,902 08
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
12 Security Community Center 205 2,068 2,273 12
14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 315 4,044 4,359 14
15 Cornerstone Church 383 4,039 4,422 15
16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,619 4,014 16
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
21 Conroe High School 684 3,078 3,762 21
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
24 Oak Ridge High School 331 2,806 3,137 24
25 Grangerland Community Center 341 3,130 3,471 25
*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 254 2,132 2,386 *26
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 155 2,298 2,453 34
36 Allendale Baptist Church 381 2,855 3,236 36
*39 Lake Creek High School 1 26 27 *39
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 581 4,994 5,575 *40
*41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 274 3,411 3,685 *41
42 Moorhead Junior High School 84 813 897 42
43 Panorama Village City Hall 344 4,309 4,653 43
44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,254 2,720 44
50 Far Hills Utility District Building 280 3,459 3,739 50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
55 Austin Elementary School 107 1,166 1,273 55
56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 319 2,855 3,174 56
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 225 1,879 2,104 60
64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 155 2,010 2,165 64
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 420 2,131 2,551 *75
*76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 306 3,843 4,149 *76
*77 April Sound Church 9 47 56 77
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 109 639 748 *81
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
85 Northridge Baptist Church 278 3,089 3,367 85
86 Living Branch Church 223 2,096 2,319 86
*90 The Palm Information Center 102 1,710 1,812 *90
*93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 80 597 677 *93

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 96
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 41 2,733 3,144 *08
*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 215 3,003 3,218 *99
13,497 121,919| 135,416 48

Lone Star College District 8

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 0 *26
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 37
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47
52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 82
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 88
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92
*93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 335 3,039 3,374 *93
94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 307 1,454 1,761 94
95 Kings Manor Elementary School 685 3,397 4,082 95
100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 270 3,226 3,496 100
6,369 53,481 59,850 16

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
Single Member MUD

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 113 - Precinct 1

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total
*90 The Palm Information Center 0 *90
*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 76 845 921 *99
| 76 845 921 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 113 - Precinct 2

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*86 Living Branch Church 0 *86
*90 The Palm Information Center 14 282 296 *90
*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 68 743 811 *99
| 82 1,025 1,107 3

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 113 - Precinct 3

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*90 The Palm Information Center 54 1,026 1,080 *90
| 54 1,026 1,080 1

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 113 - Precinct 4

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*90 The Palm Information Center 68 1,053 1,121 *90
*99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 2 2 *99
| 68 1,055 1,123 2

Montgomery County Municipal Utility District 113 - Precinct 5

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*90 The Palm Information Center 59 806 865 *90
| 59 806 865 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
Medical Management District

Valley Ranch Medical Center Management District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
*93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 0 *93
0 1

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
Water Conservation District

Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
01 Willis Community Building 225 1,818 2,043 01
02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 211 2,099 2,310 02
03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 748 4,925 5,673 03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
05 Long Street Community Center 13 283 296 05
06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 06
07 New Caney Elementary School 197 1,831 2,028 07
08 Browder Community Center 177 2,725 2,902 08
09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 142 1,699 1,841 09
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
11 Woodforest Church 202 1,757 1,959 11
12 Security Community Center 205 2,068 2,273 12
13 Decker Prairie Community Center 344 4,712 5,056 13
14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 315 4,044 4,359 14
15 Cornerstone Church 383 4,039 4,422 15
16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,619 4,014 16
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
19 City of Montgomery City Hall 300 3,295 3,595 19
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
21 Conroe High School 684 3,078 3,762 21
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
24 Oak Ridge High School 331 2,806 3,137 24
25 Grangerland Community Center 341 3,130 3,471 25
26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 254 2,132 2,386 26
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 276 2,930 3,206 28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29
30 Magnolia High School 161 2,291 2,452 30
31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 438 4,101 4,539 31
32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 451 2,375 2,826 32
33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 33
34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 155 2,298 2,453 34
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
36 Allendale Baptist Church 381 2,855 3,236 36
37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 37
38 Montgomery County West Annex 535 4,804 5,339 38
39 Lake Creek High School 358 4,240 4,598 39
40 Cryar Intermediate School 581 4,994 5,575 40
41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 277 3,455 3,732 41
42 Moorhead Junior High School 84 813 897 42
43 Panorama Village City Hall 344 4,309 4,653 43

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,254 2,720 44
45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 393 2,562 2,955 45
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
50 Far Hills Utility District Building 280 3,459 3,739 50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
55 Austin Elementary School 107 1,166 1,273 55
56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 319 2,855 3,174 56
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 225 1,879 2,104 60
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
62 Collins Intermediate School 257 2,417 2,674 62
63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 596 4,709 5,305 63
64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 155 2,010 2,165 64
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 343 3,622 3,965 66
67 Lamar Elementary School 346 2,421 2,767 67
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 69
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
72 Bentwater Yacht Club 245 3,629 3,874 72
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74
75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 735 3,392 4,127 75
76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 333 4,217 4,550 76
77 April Sound Church 384 3,788 4172 77
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
79 Glen Loch Elementary School 313 1,840 2,153 79
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
81 Mitchell Intermediate School 519 3,529 4,048 81
82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 82
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 1,029 3,428 4,457 84
85 Northridge Baptist Church 278 3,089 3,367 85
86 Living Branch Church 223 2,096 2,319 86
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 88
89 Bear Branch Elementary School 388 4,080 4,468 89
90 The Palm Information Center 323 4,572 4,895 90

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
91 Magnolia West High School 154 1,814 1,968 91
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92
93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93
94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 307 1,454 1,761 94
95 Kings Manor Elementary School 685 3,397 4,082 95
96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 96
97 Magnolia Event Center 222 2,946 3,168 97
98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 560 4,165 4,725 98
99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 218 3,090 3,308 99
100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 270 3,226 3,496 100

35,165 309,621 344,786 100

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Single Member Water Conservation District - Precinct

Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District - Precinct 1

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
01 Willis Community Building 225 1,818 2,043 01
05 Long Street Community Center 13 283 296 05
08 Browder Community Center 177 2,725 2,902 08
09 Dobbin - Dacus Community Center 142 1,699 1,841 09
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
19 City of Montgomery City Hall 300 3,295 3,595 19
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
21 Conroe High School 684 3,078 3,762 21
22 Lake Conroe Hills Community Building 526 4,184 4,710 22
23 North Montgomery County Community Center 404 3,376 3,780 23
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
38 Montgomery County West Annex 535 4,804 5,339 38
40 Cryar Intermediate School 581 4,994 5,575 40
43 Panorama Village City Hall 344 4,309 4,653 43
44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,254 2,720 44
50 Far Hills Utility District Building 280 3,459 3,739 50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
57 Calvary Road Baptist Church 234 2,446 2,680 57
60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 225 1,879 2,104 60
63 Precinct 63 Polling Place To Be Determined 596 4,709 5,305 63
72 Bentwater Yacht Club 245 3,629 3,874 72
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
77 April Sound Church 384 3,788 4,172 77
85 Northridge Baptist Church 278 3,089 3,367 85

8,334 71,391 79,725 24

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct




Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District - Precinct 2

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
11 Woodforest Church 202 1,757 1,959 1
13 Decker Prairie Community Center 344 4,712 5,056 13
15 Cornerstone Church 383 4,039 4,422 15
18 Magnolia Community Center 471 4,372 4,843 18
28 Decker Prairie Elementary School 276 2,930 3,206 28
29 West Montgomery County Community Development Center 407 4,244 4,651 29
30 Magnolia High School 161 2,291 2,452 30
31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 438 4,101 4,539 31
34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 155 2,298 2,453 34
39 Lake Creek High School 358 4,240 4,598 39
65 J. L. Lyon Elementary School 374 4,832 5,206 65
66 Outback Western Wear Event Hall 343 3,622 3,965 66
69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 69
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 274 2,352 2,626 74
75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 735 3,392 4,127 75
76 Westwood Landowners' Association Building 333 4,217 4,550 76
81 Mitchell Intermediate School 519 3,529 4,048 81
86 Living Branch Church 223 2,096 2,319 86
89 Bear Branch Elementary School 388 4,080 4,468 89
90 The Palm Information Center 323 4,572 4,895 90
91 Magnolia West High School 154 1,814 1,968 91
97 Magnolia Event Center 222 2,946 3,168 97
98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 560 4,165 4,725 98
99 Jean Stewart Elementary School 218 3,090 3,308 99

8,696 87,519 96,215 25

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District - Precinct 3

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 748 4,925 5,673 03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 06
32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 451 2,375 2,826 32
33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 33
35 Robinson Road Community Center 588 4,493 5,081 35
45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 393 2,562 2,955 45
46 Sue Park Broadway Elementary School 482 4,132 4,614 46
47 South Montgomery County Fire Station #4 524 3,769 4,293 47
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
62 Collins Intermediate School 257 2,417 2,674 62
67 Lamar Elementary School 346 2,421 2,767 67
68 Knights of Columbus Hall 461 4,300 4,761 68
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
79 Glen Loch Elementary School 313 1,840 2,153 79
80 Imperial Oaks Neighborhood Center 427 4,622 5,049 80
84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 1,029 3,428 4,457 84
87 Birnham Woods Elementary School 257 3,026 3,283 87
88 C.D. York Junior High School 317 3,411 3,728 88
92 Kaufman Elementary School 549 4,030 4,579 92

100 Precinct 100 Polling Place To Be Determined 270 3,226 3,496 100
10,594 82,025 92,619 26

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District - Precinct 4

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active Total PCT
02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 211 2,099 2,310 02
07 New Caney Elementary School 197 1,831 2,028 07
12 Security Community Center 205 2,068 2,273 12
14 Robert L. Crippen Elementary School 315 4,044 4,359 14
16 Splendora ISD Instructional Services 395 3,619 4,014 16
17 First Baptist Church Groceville 270 3,402 3,672 17
24 Oak Ridge High School 331 2,806 3,137 24
25 Grangerland Community Center 341 3,130 3,471 25
26 East Montgomery County Fair Association Building 254 2,132 2,386 26
36 Allendale Baptist Church 381 2,855 3,236 36
37 Friendship United Methodist Church 298 2,396 2,694 37
41 Splendora ISD Administration Building 277 3,455 3,732 41
42 Moorhead Junior High School 84 813 897 42
52 New Caney ISD Annex 394 3,304 3,698 52
53 Woodbranch City Hall 270 3,680 3,950 53
54 Precinct 54 Polling Place To Be Determined 179 1,608 1,787 54
55 Austin Elementary School 107 1,166 1,273 55
56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 319 2,855 3,174 56
64 Whispering Pines Baptist Church 155 2,010 2,165 64
82 Bens Branch Elementary School 475 4,882 5,357 82
83 Precinct 83 Polling Place To Be Determined 102 1,342 1,444 83
93 Valley Ranch Elementary School 415 3,636 4,051 93
94 Lone Star College - Kingwood, Performing Arts Center 307 1,454 1,761 94
95 Kings Manor Elementary School 685 3,397 4,082 95
96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 574 4,702 5,276 96

7,541 68,686 76,227 25

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



Montgomery County Elections
Exhibit B

Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM

Single Member Water Conservation District — Other Territory

Single Member Water Conservation District - City of Conroe

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active

*01 Willis Community Building 82 669 751 *01
*02 Conroe Seventh-Day Adventist Church 208 2,090 2,298 *02
10 Booker T. Washington Junior High School 245 2,408 2,653 10
*11 Woodforest Church 124 1,078 1,202 *11
*15 Cornerstone Church 75 1,357 1,432 *15
20 Travis Intermediate School 225 1,965 2,190 20
*21 Conroe High School 683 3,066 3,749 *21
*25 Grangerland Community Center 2 2 *25
27 Rivershire Club House 507 3,493 4,000 27
*34 Needham Fire Department Station 64 0 *34
*38 Montgomery County West Annex 14 108 122 *38
*39 Lake Creek High School 4 4 *39
*40 Cryar Intermediate School 536 4,524 5,060 *40
*43 Panorama Village City Hall 195 2,516 2,711 *43
*44 The Lone Star Convention Center 466 2,252 2,718 *44
*50 Far Hills Utility District Building 25 303 328 *50
51 Central Library 590 2,131 2,721 51
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 6 22 28 *56
*60 Montgomery County Juvenile Facility 194 1,502 1,696 *60
73 City of Conroe, Dean Towery Service Center 128 1,576 1,704 73
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 417 2,037 2,454 *75
77 April Sound Church 384 3,788 4172 77
*85 Northridge Baptist Church 3 3 *85
*86 Living Branch Church 115 983 1,098 *86
*90 The Palm Information Center 1 4 5 *90
*96 Gerald D. Irons, Sr. Junior High School 0 *96
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 185 675 860 *08
| 5405  38,556| 43,961 27

Single Member Water Conservation District - The Woodlands Township

PCT Polling Location Suspense Active
*03 The Woodlands High School Ninth Grade Campus 510 3,894 4,404 *03
04 Copperwood Apartment Building 315 1,676 1,991 04
*06 Deretchin Elementary School 432 3,417 3,849 *06
*31 Shenandoah Municipal Complex 245 1,700 1,945 *31
*32 W.D. Wilkerson Intermediate School 438 2,244 2,682 *32
*33 South County Community Center 581 2,719 3,300 *33
*45 Timber Lakes/Timber Ridge Fire Station 88 1,008 1,096 *45
48 Sally K. Ride Elementary School 194 2,193 2,387 48
49 David Elementary School 272 2,057 2,329 49
*56 The Woodlands Emergency Training Center 265 2,418 2,683 *56
58 Lone Star College System 165 2,227 2,392 58

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct




Montgomery County Elections

Exhibit B
Report Time:12/17/2019 4:16:28 PM
59 Powell Elementary School 115 1,519 1,634 59
61 George and Cynthia Woods Mitchell Library 379 4,277 4,656 61
*62 Collins Intermediate School 170 2,114 2,284 *62
*67 Lamar Elementary School 342 2,402 2,744 *67
*69 Barbara Pierce Bush Elementary School 455 3,769 4,224 *69
70 The Woodlands Recreation Center 244 2,508 2,752 70
71 Buckalew Elementary School 380 4,059 4,439 71
*74 Cedric C. Smith Elementary School 1 1 *74
*75 Windsor Hills Homeowners' Association Club House 315 1,261 1,576 *75
78 Roger L. Galatas Elementary School 485 4,455 4,940 78
*79 Glen Loch Elementary School 279 1,701 1,980 *79
*81 Mitchell Intermediate School 410 2,699 3,109 *81
*84 Precinct 84 Polling Place To Be Determined 248 1,304 1,552 *84
*98 Precinct 98 Polling Place To Be Determined 149 1,432 1,581 *08

7,476 59,054 66,530 25

* Jurisdiction Occupies only a part of the Precinct



May 2, 2020
Montgomery County Joint Election
Exhibit C — Timetable

Participating Entity agrees that timing is critical, and failure to adhere to this Timetable without prior
agreement of Contracting Officer may result in additional charges or cancellation of Contracting
Officer’s duties and obligations to conduct Political Subdivision’s election under this Agreement.
Participating Entity is responsible for meeting all deadlines under this Agreement, including such
deadlines that occur on a day on which Participating Entity is closed for business.

The dates in this Exhibit C - Timetable that pertain to deadlines provided by statute are not to be
considered legal advice and are for convenience only. The office of the Texas Secretary of State
provides a calendar of events with citations to the Texas Election Code and information specific to
entity type at https://www.sos.texas.gov/elections. It is the responsibility of Participating Entity to
confer with its attorney for guidance on any statutes that govern the entity and election and to comply
with all requirements for orders, postings, and notices for the Political Subdivision and election.

Immediately
If your entity is not listed on Exhibit B, has “Need to Confirm Streets” indicated on Exhibit B, has

annexed territory, or has made any boundary changes, you must contact Contracting Officer at
Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org and Matt.Murray@mctx.org immediately. Streets and block ranges in your
jurisdictional boundaries must be defined, and this process can be lengthy. An Approval Form for
streets must be signed by January 28, 2020, in order for you to participate in the Joint Election.

January 28, 2020
Entity Fact Sheet due.

Electronic Ballot Template for candidate elections only (without candidate names) due.
Email Ballot Template for a special election on a measure as soon as it is available, and not later than
the date the election is ordered.*

The Ballot Template must be emailed in a Word Document on our Ballot Template Form to
Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org, Cynthia.Jamieson@mctx.org, and Jason.Lay@mctx.org.

Email candidate names separately, immediately following the Candidate Filing deadline.

Email the order of candidates on the ballot immediately following your ballot position drawing.

*For a special election on a measure, if the ballot language for the proposition(s) has not been
finalized, or if the Spanish translations have not been completed, please provide the expected number
of propositions and the details of any candidate race(s) so that the information can be inserted as
place holders in the election database. This will allow ballot preparation to remain on schedule.

Deadline to email Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org and Cynthia.Jamieson@mctx.org notification of
participation in Joint Election, even if your election has not been ordered or if the election might be
canceled if it is uncontested. Contracting Officer is unable to accommodate anyone who responds
late. If notice is not received by this date, Political Subdivision will not be included in future
correspondence regarding the Joint Election or in the Exhibit D - Cost Estimate.

P:\2020.05.02 Election\Contracts\Exhibit C Timetable 2020.05.02 - 2020.01.10.docx 1of5



February 14, 2020
Deadline to order an election, unless otherwise provided by statute. Please forward a copy of your
Order of Election to Contracting Officer.

5:00 PM - Candidate Filing deadline, unless otherwise provided by statute.*
*Schedule your ballot position drawing as soon as possible, but no later than the first business day
after the Candidate Withdrawal deadline, and email the order of candidates on the ballot (see entry

under February 24).
Notice of ballot position drawing must be posted for 72 hours immediately preceding drawing.
Political subdivision other than a city: The authority conducting the ballot position drawing must

mail written notice of the date, hour, and place of the drawing to candidates not later than the
fourth day before the drawing.

City: On receipt of a candidate’s written request accompanied by a stamped, self-addressed
envelope, the authority conducting the ballot position drawing must mail written notice of the
date, hour, and place of the drawing to the candidate.

5:15 PM — Deadline to notify Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org and Cynthia.Jamieson@mctx.org whether
Political Subdivision has a contested general election. Political subdivision will not be included in
the Joint Election if we do not receive notice.

5:15 PM — Deadline to email candidate names in the exact form in which they are to be printed on
the ballot. as provided by the candidate on the Application for a Place on the Ballot. Corrections and
changes cause delays in ballot programming.

February 18, 2020

12:00 PM — Deadline to email phonetic pronunciation of all candidate names that are not obvious,
which will be used for the ballot audio recording.

5:00 PM — Write-In Declaration Filing deadline, unless otherwise provided by statute.*

5:15 PM — If a Write-In causes election to be contested, deadline to notify Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org
and Cynthia.Jamieson@mctx.org.

5:15 PM — Deadline to email the names of Write-In candidates.

5:15 PM - If election is uncontested as of 5:00 PM on this date, Deadline to cancel election with
Contracting Officer and incur no fees under this Agreement. If election is contested as of this date,
but a candidate withdrawal after this date causes election to be uncontested, no charges will be
assessed if Contracting Officer is notified of cancellation on the date of the withdrawal.

February 21, 2020

5:00 PM — Candidate Withdrawal deadline, including Write-In Candidates, unless otherwise
provided by statute.

5:15 PM - Deadline to email Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org and Cynthia.Jamieson@mctx.org
withdrawals or election cancellation.

5:15 PM - If a candidate withdrawal on this date causes election to be uncontested, Deadline to
cancel election with Contracting Officer and incur no fees under this Agreement.
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February 24, 2020

7:00 PM — Deadline to email order of candidates on ballot (please email it as soon as it is available,
if sooner than the deadline) to Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org and Cynthia.Jamieson@mctx.org.

Deadlines for ballot proofing and ballot approval will be emailed with ballot proofs. The
Participating Entities must adhere to deadlines in order for Contracting Officer to meet the
Federal and/or State deadlines to mail or email, as applicable, any military and overseas
ballots.

February 28, 2020
Deadline to receive executed Election Services Agreement and Joint Election Agreement by
email, mail, delivery (addresses on last page).

March 3, 2020

Deadline for political subdivision to deliver Notice of Election, including the building name, street
address, and room number of each polling place, required by Section 4.008(a), Election Code, to
Elections Administrator. Notice shall be posted on the County’s website no later than the 21st day
before Election Day, as provided by Section 4.003(b), Election Code. Political subdivision may
email a pdf or a scanned copy of the Notice (addresses on last page).

March 20, 2020
9:00 AM — Public Logic and Accuracy Test and First Test of Automatic Tabulating Equipment held
at Election Central, 9159 Airport Road, Conroe, Texas 77303.

April 2, 2020
Last day to register to vote for the May 2, 2020 Election.

10:00 AM — Deadline to receive copy of any Notice or Order which Participating Entity wishes to
have Contracting Officer post at polling places being used in the election, including
e copy of any debt obligation election order required to be posted by Section 4.003(f)(1), Election
Code
e copy of any order or ordinance of unopposed candidate(s) declared elected required to be posted
by Section 2.053(a), Election Code

The copy, including the translation in Spanish and any other required language(s), may be provided
electronically to Contracting Officer (addresses on last page).

The copy will be posted by Contracting Officer as follows:
e Early Voting Polling Places — before polls open on the first day of Early Voting
¢ Election Day Polling Places — before polls open on Election Day

Posting that is to be made earlier than the above schedule or at any location other than the
polling places being used in the election or posting of any copy that is received later than this
date is the responsibility of Participating Entity.

April 20 — 28, 2020
Early Voting period.
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April 20, 2020
Last day to accept applications for early voting ballot by mail and Federal Post Card Applications.

The Early Voting Clerk may now receive applications beginning at any time during the calendar year,
but no later than this date.

Applications for ballot by mail should be sent to:

Suzie Harvey
Elections Administrator
P. O. Box 2646
Conroe, TX 77305-2646

Any applications received by Participating Entity must be delivered in person or by email or fax
to Contracting Officer on the day of receipt. Original applications that are received by mail and
forwarded by email or fax must also be mailed or delivered in person to Contracting Officer for
all processing.

May 1, 2020
If applicable, last day to post notice at the entrance to any polling place from Political Subdivision’s

preceding election that is different from the polling place used for this election and provide the
location of the new polling place pursuant to Texas Election Code Section 43.062.

Saturday, May 2, 2020
7:00 AM to 7:00 PM - Election Day

Regular deadline to receive early voting ballots by mail.

May 5, 2020
Last day to begin the Partial Manual Count, if not waived.

May 8, 2020
Deadline to receive military ballots.

May 12 — 13, 2020
Recommended dates to schedule your canvass.

Dates set by law to conduct official local canvass of returns are May 5 — 13. However, the Early
Voting Ballot Board may be processing provisional ballots and overseas mail ballots as late as

May 11. Canvass reports will be emailed as soon as possible, but they might not be available
until May 12.

Unless otherwise provided, pursuant to Section 67.004 (a) of the Texas Election Code, two
members of the canvassing authority constitute a quorum for the purposes of canvassing an
election.
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May 26, 2020
Last day to complete the Partial Manual Count, if not waived.

30 days from date of Final Invoice
Pay balance due for election services. Checks should be made payable to:
Montgomery County Elections Administrator.

March 3, 2022
First day that non-permanent election records* may be destroyed IF no contest or criminal
investigation has arisen and IF no open records request has been filed.

*Permanent Records: (Sec. 66.001, 67.004, 67.006, Texas Election Code)
Election results in tabulated form must be preserved as a permanent record in the election register for
each local canvassing authority by:

City: the city secretary

Political subdivision other than a county or city: the secretary of the governing body or, if there is
no secretary, the presiding officer of the governing body

May 2, 2022
Candidate Applications must be retained by the governing body for two years after the date of the

election (Sec. 141.036, Texas Election Code).

Suzie Harvey
Montgomery County Elections Administrator

Email Mail Delivery
Suzie.Harvey@mctx.org P. O. Box 2646 9159 Airport Road
and Conroe, TX 77305-2646 Conroe, TX 77303

Cynthia.Jamieson@mctx.org
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o Shenandoah City Council
SHENANDOAH AGENDA REPORT

T E X A S

AGENDA DATE: January 22, 2020 ITEM NUMBER: 16
DEPARTMENT: Water and Sewer PREPARED BY:  Joseph Peart
PRICING: $20.990.25 EXHIBITS: Change Order #1

SUBJECT/PROCEEDING:

Change Order #1 for Pinecroft Waterline Project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends approval of the change order #1.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

During construction of the Pinecroft waterline, staff discovered that a section of waterline that crosses underneath
Pinecroft is Asbestos Cement Pipe (ACP). This section of piping is a major artery for businesses in the southwest portion
of the City. Staff requested the contractor (Eastex Utility Construction) to provide a quote for replacement of the ACP
pipe with PVC. Change order #1 was provided at an overall price change of $20,990.25.

$560,000 was budgeted for the project during budget workshop and actual bids came in significantly lower than
estimated cost of $229,011 for the entire project. That leaves $330,989 remaining budgeted funds. Including the change
order will still leave the project well under its budgeted amount.

Change Order #1 will increase the overall cost of the project by 9%.

This change order is part of the 30/70 percent cost share with MDD.

Water/Sewer $6,297.07

MDD $14,693.18
Total $20,990.25
APPROVALS:
";’7 L — .
DEPARTMENT HEAD A ey DATE: January 14, 2020
CITY ADMINISTRATOR \Mt S DATE: January 16, 2020
NS

Page 1
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SECTION 00 63 63

CHANGE ORDER No. 1

PROJECT: Savanah and Pinccroft Waterline Improvements
BE PROJECT No.: 12243  City of Shenandoah PO #20200344

TO: EASTEX UTILITY CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR and 11235 KEITH ROAD
Address for Written Nouce BEAUMONT, TX 77713

REFERENCE RFIs/RFPs: To z2dd additional work and materials along Pinecroft, delete unused jtems from the
orginal Contract, and to record items of work performed in lieu of other original Contract items.

1.01 DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES CONTRACT CHANGE
AMOUNT TIME
See attached Pages for each affected item $20,990.25 10 Days

TOTALS: $20,990.25 10 Days

1.02 ACCEPTANCE BY CONTRACTOR - EASTEX UTILITY CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR agrees ta perform change(s) included in this Change Order for the price and time indicated.
The prices for ::?cs include all costs associated with this Change Order.

‘% O Ang~ [ -5~ [Pl
CONTRACTOR Signature and Tide Date
Mark Foust, Owner

1.03 ACCEPTANCE BY THE OWNER AND ENGINEER

City of Shenandoah Representative Date

City/of Shegandoaly Representative

gincering Representative

END OF DOCUMENT

Blcyl lingineenng Change Order Form
Revised 1/15/2020 00 63 63: Page 1 of 2



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Change Order No. 1 - Savannah & Pinecroft Water Line — City of Shenandoah
BE Project No. 12243 City of Shenandoah PO #20200344

1.01 CONTRACT PRICE SUMMARY DOLLAR AMOUNT

PERCENT
A. Qriginal Contract Price $229,011.00 100.00%
B. Previous Change Orders $0.00 0.00%
C. This Change Order $20,990.25 9.17%
D. Contract Price $250,001.25 109.17%

Date of Commencement of the Work:

1.02 CONTRACT TIME SUMMARY DURATION

December 2, 2019

COMPLETION DATE

A. Original Contract Time 80 Days In "Working Days"
B. Previous Change Orders 0 Days

C. This Change Order 10 Days

D. Contract Time 90 Days April 3, 2020

1.03 TOTAL VALUE OF INCREASES OUTSIDE OF GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK
A.  Including this Change Order, the following table 1s provided to track conditions related to Document 00

72 43 - General Conditions.

PERCENT OF ORIGINAL
CHANGE ORDER No. AMOUNT ADDED CONITRACT PRICE
1 $20,990.25 9.17%
TOTALS $20,990.25 9.17%
END OF SUMMARY
Bleyl Engincenng Change Order Form

Revised 1/15/2020

00 63 63: Page 2 of 2




BLEYL ENGINEERING

PLANNING * DESIGN ¢ MANAGEMENT OWNER: City of Shenandoah
BE Project # 12243
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 DATE: 1/15/2020
City of Shenandoah - Savannah & Pinecroft Water Line C/0 NO. 1

Contractor: Eastex Utility Construction

Original Change in R
Item Description Contract | Revised Qty 8 Unit Price g
Qty Qty Contract Amount

A. New Additional Items of Work along Pinecroft
To add additional work along Pinecroft: Scope to include abandoning in place an existing 12" Abestos-Cement Water Line that
runs under Pinccroft, plugging both ends, and installing a 8-inch C-900 Water Line inside a 16-inch HDPE casing installed by
bore under Pinecroft. Price to include all Labor, Materials, Equipment, TrafTic Control, and Hydroseeding. Extensive manhours
are expected in order to locate existing utilities.

28  Additional Work along Pinecroft 0LS 1LS 1LS $41,000.00 41.000.00
Total Additional Work $41,000.00

B. Added Materials for Original Scope of Work along Pinecroft

In the course of installing 12-inch C-900 Water Line along Pinecroft, the route of the proposed new 12-inch line could not be
lollowed as several unknown underground obstructions were in the way. The use of 12-inch 45-degree Ductile Iron Bends were
required in order to divert around the obstructions. Four were required to go around an old Light Pole Foundation, Two were
required at a Tapping Sleeve and Valve in a wooded area, and Two were required as an offset at the last bore.

29 Added 45-degree Ductile Iron bends OEA 8 EA 8 EA $400.00 $3.200.00
Total Added Materials $3,200.00

C. To Delete Unused items from the Original Contract

During construction of 8-inch Water Line at Savannah, an unknown existing 8-inch Waler Line in service was discovered. As a
result, installation of a portion of new B-inch Water Line, a Fire Hydrant, and 8-inch Gate Valves were not needed. These
unused items are being deleted from the Contract.

4 8" C-900 Water Line w/Tracer Wire 491 LF 170LF (321)LF $42.75 (313,722.75)
5  B" Gate Valve 5EA 2EA (3)EA $1,395.00 {$4,185.00)
11 Fire Hydram 7EA 6 EA (DEA $5,302.00 3.302.00

Total Deleted Work ($23,209.75)

Scction 0D675: Page 2 of 2



BLEYL ENGINEERING

PLANNING * DESIGN * MANAGEMENT OWNER: City of Shenandoah
BE Project # 12243
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 DATE: 1/15/2020
City of Shenandoah - Savannah & Pinecroft Water Line C/0 NO. 1

Contractor: Eastex Utility Construction

Original Change in Change in
Item Description Contract | Revised Qty B Unit Price g
Qty Qty Contract Amount

D. Work Performed in lien of Original Contract Items

When discovery of an unknown existing 8-inch Water Line was discovered during construction at Savannah, two items included

in the original scope of work were performed using alternative means and methods. Both ilems were completed with no price
change.

3 Tapping Sleeve & Valve Connection 2EA 1 EA (1) EA $3.363.00 ($3.363.00)
3A 2 Wet Tic-ins in licu of TS&V 0EA | EA 1 EA $3,363.00 $3.363.00
21 Grout Pipe with Flowable Fill 30LF OLF (3O LF $65.00 ($1.950.00)

21A  Concrele plug at both ends in licu of OEA 2EA 2EA 3975.00 $1.950.00
Total Work Performed "In Lieu Of" 0.00

Total of This Change Order No. 1 $20,990.25

+ Original Contract Amount $229.011.00

= Current Contract Amount $250.001,25

Section 00675: Page 2 of 2



. Shenandoah City Council
SHENANDOAH AGENDA REPORT

T E X A S

AGENDA DATE: January 22, 2020 ITEM NUMBER: 17
DEPARTMENT: Public Works PREPARED BY:  Kenny Eickelberg
PRICING: $24,500 EXHIBITS: Bleyl Engineering — Project Design

Bleyl Engineering — Project Location

SUBJECT/PROCEEDING:

Home Depot Driveway and East Bound Research Forest right hand turn lane extension

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve final design with Bleyl Engineering for $24,500.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

In 2017, staff, MDD and City Council began studying the capacity and improvements needed in the city’s road system.
Studies showed concerns about the 1-45/Research Forest and Tamina Intersection. City has been meeting with TxDOT,
County officials and businesses in the area to gather information to improve the mobility of this area. City staff
recommends completing design for these projects: 1) driveway swap at Home Depot and 2) right hand turn lane east
bound Research Forest to south bound I-45 service road.

1) When delivery trucks exit Home Depot, they use a large portion of the roadway and intersection at Tamina and
David Memorial in order to travel towards the I-45 corridor. This project closes the driveway onto David Memorial
and adds an exit driveway onto west bound Tamina, See Exhibit 002 for locations. City staff is working with Home
Depot Corporate for support and backing of the project. Local Home Depot store management favors the project.

2) The east bound turn lane to south bound I-45 service road can be extended to improve traffic flow east bound at
the 1-45 and Research Forest intersection (see Exhibit 002 for location). This project has been discussed with the
County. This will help improve the through traffic and the east to south bound traffic at this intersection.

MDD has funded the studies and the planning portion of these projects, and staff is requesting funds for the Design
portion of the project at this time. See Bleyl Exhibit 001 for cost break down with a total cost of $37,000. The two projects
are being combined for a potential cost savings. MDD funding is from the 2017-2018 Tamina Rd. and Research Forest
project.

APPROVALS:
DEPARTMENT HE<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>